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POWERGRID HIMACHAL TRANSMISSION LIMITED
(A wholly owned subsidiary of POWERGRID)
(Formerly known as .Jaypee Pawergrid Ltd.)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

To
The Members,

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present the 16t Annual
Report on the business and operations of the Company together with
the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31t March, 2022,

1, FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Financial performance of the Company for the year under report is

as under:-
- (Rs. in Cr.)
Particnlars Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Revenue from Operations 133.65 147.76

 Other Income 2.78 | 4,57
Totael Income 136.43 153,32
Earnings before Interest, Depreciation & 125.90 | 142,02
Tax (EBITDA) |
Less: Interest ' 13.69 1 23.63 |
Less: Depreciation 52.88 53.53
Profit /(Loss) before Tax {PET) | 60.33 64.86

 Less: Current Tax/Deferred Tax T 1.96 (14.26) |
Less: Net movement in Regulatory Deferral N 7.08 49.11
Account I
Frofit after Tax {PAT) ' 51.29 30.00

| Other comprehensive Income {0.04) I (0.00) |
“Total comprehensive Income ' 51,238 30.00
Earning per Equity Share a

o Basle 1,75 1.00
o Diluted : |
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OPERATIONS

The Directors of the Company wish to report that, during the year, the
average availability of the transmission system was 99.53% as against
the normative annual transmission system availability factor of 98.50%.
High availability of transmission line is being achieved through
exhaustive Preventive Maintenance Mechanism that is being
implemented by the Company.

The maintenance of 400 kV bays (2 Main + 2 Tie) at Abdullapur is being
done by M/s Power Grid Corporation of India Ltd. and the 400 kV line
Shunt Reactors (2), and associated bays installed at Karcham Wangtoo
Hydro-Electric Project (Wangtoo) are being maintained by M/s JSW
Hydro Energy Limited (formerly known as Himachal Baspa Power
Company Ltd.) against payment of maintenance charges by the
Company.

Your Directors wish to report that Profit after Tax (PAT) during the
current Financial Year 2021-22 was Rs. 51.25 crore as against
Rs. 30 crores in the previous year, an increase of 70.83%.

CHANGE IN NAME

Pursuant to the change in management of the Company, the name of the
Company with the approval of the Directors, Shareholders and Registrar
of Companies was changed from Jaypee Powergrid Limited to Powergrid
Himachal Transmission Limited w.e.f. 5t July, 2021.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of your Company declared two Interim Dividends
@ Rs. 0.40 per Share (i.e. @4%) each on 27th August, 2021 and
27th October, 2021. No Final Dividend was recommended for the
Financial Year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserves for
the financial year.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up Equity Share capital as at 31st March, 2022 is Rs. 300 crore.
During the year under review, your Company has not issued any:

shares with differential rights;
sweat equity shares;

equity shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme;

Your Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of POWERGRID.



DIRECTORATE AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Shri T C Sarmah ceased to be Director on the Board of the Company
w.e.f. 18th January, 2022 in terms of Letter No. C/COS/Powergrid
Himachal Dated 18t January, 2022 is received from POWERGRID, the
Holding Company informing about the nomination of Shri Yugesh Kumar
Dixit, ED (BDD & JV), POWERGRID on the Board of the Company in
place of Shri T C Sarmah, who had since superannuated from
POWERGRID. Shri Yugesh Kumar Dixit was appointed as Additional
Director on the Board w.e.f. 7tr February, 2022. Shri K Sreekant,
Chairman and Director of the Company resigned from the office of
Chairman/ Director of the Company w.e.f. 234 February, 2022
consequent upon his appointment in Powergrid Energy Services Limited.

The Board places on record its appreciation for the invaluable services of
Shri K Sreekant as Chairman & Director and Shri T C Sarmah as Director
of the Company.

Smt. Manju Gupta was appointed as Additional Director w.e.f.
11th June, 2022.

As on 31st March, 2022, Board of Directors of the Company comprises of
Shri Rajiv Kumar, Shri Pramod Kumar, Shri Yugesh Kumar Dixit and
Smt. Manju Gupta.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 8 and 8A of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as on
31st March, 2022, the following persons have been designated as Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company by the Board:

Shri Rajiv Kumar, Whole-time Director & CEO
Shri Bhabatosh Das, CFO
Shri Rajeev Kumar, Company Secretary

RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) of Companies Act,
2013, Shri Pramod Kumar shall retire by rotation and is eligible for re-
appointment.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under report, the Board met seven times. The meetings
of Board of Directors were held on 29th April, 2021, 25t May, 2021,
11th June, 2021, 6th August, 2021, 27th September, 2021, 27t October,
2021 and 7th February, 2022.



8. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD’S PERFORMANCE

Your Company, being wholly-owned Subsidiary of POWERGRID, is a
Government Company. The Whole time Directors & senior officials of
POWERGRID (the holding company) are nominated as Directors of your
Company. POWERGRID, being a Government Company, the Directors so
nominated by it in your Company, are being evaluated under a well laid
down procedure for evaluation of CMD / Functional Directors by
Administrative Ministry and for evaluation of senior officials by
POWERGRID (the holding company).

9. HOLDING & SUBSIDIARIES

As on 31st March, 2022, Company is the wholly owned subsidiary of Power
Grid Corporation of India Limited. During the year under review, the
Company does not have any subsidiary.

10. DEPOSITS

The Company did not invite / accept any Fixed Deposits from the Public
during the year under review.

11.AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT
Statutory Auditors:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules
made thereunder, the Statutory Auditors of the Company are required to
be appointed by Comptroller & Auditors General of India. Comptroller &
Auditors General of India vide their letter no. No./CA. V/ COY/CENTRAL
GOVERNMENT,JPPGL(1)/433 dated 29t August, 2022 informed the
Company about the appointment of M/s A P T & Co., LLP as Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23 on a
remuneration of Rs. 5,00,000/- exclusive of GST. Resolution relating to
their remuneration is included in the Notice of the Annual General
Meeting.

Auditors’ Report

The Statutory Auditors have given an unqualified report. The report is
self-explanatory and does not require any further comments by the
Board.

The Company has received ‘Nil’ comments on the Financial Statements
for the Year ended 31st March 2022 from the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under Section 143(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The
comments of C&AG is attached as “Annexure-1” which forms part of the
Report.



12.

13.

During the year under report, no frauds were reported by the Auditors’
under second proviso to Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Secretarial Auditors’ Report:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board, has re-appointed
M/s Naveen Chhabra & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries to
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year
2022-23.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended on 31st March,
2022, issued by M/s Naveen Chhabra & Associates, Practising Company
Secretaries, in form MR-3 forms part of this report and marked as
“Annexure2”.

The said Report does not contain any qualification or observation
requiring explanation or comments under section 134(3)(f)(ii) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Cost Auditors:

For the Financial Year 2022-23, the Board of Directors of the Company
have appointed M/s. R Singhal & Associates, Cost accountants as Cost
Auditors of the Company for auditing the Cost Records relating to
‘Generation, transmission, distribution and supply of Electricity’, other
than for Captive Generation and the Resolution for ratification of their
remuneration has been included in the Notice for ensuing Annual
General Meeting.

The Cost Audit Report for the Financial Year 2021-22 will be filed within
the due date.

EXTRACTS OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013,
Extract of the Annual Return for the financial year ended 31st March
2022 in prescribed Form MGT-9 made under provisions of Section 92(3)
of Companies Act, 2013 is attached as “Annexure-3” which forms part
of the Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS
The Directors wish to report that your Company had neither granted any

loans nor made any investments nor given any guarantee under Section
186 of Companies Act, 2013.
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16.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company
has also framed a Risk Management Policy, which inter-alia:

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls which were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective
company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013

defines framework for identification, assessment, monitoring, mitigation
and reporting of risks; and

ensures that all the current and future material risk exposures are
identified, assessed, quantified, appropriately mitigated, minimized and
managed and critical risks which impact the achievement of Company’s
objectives or threatens its existence are periodically reviewed.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

In terms of section 134(3)(l) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is reported
that, except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no material changes
and commitments which could affect the Company’s financial position
that have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company
and date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

the Director had, in consultation with Statutory Auditors, selected such
accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial
year ended 31st March, 2022 and the profits of the company for that
period;

the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern
basis; and
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19.

(i)

(i1)

(i)

the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate
and operating effectively.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Internal Auditor have reported that in their opinion, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting (ICFR) are operating effectively during the FY-2021-22, based
on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of
Internal Control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit Of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance
systems established and maintained by the Company, work performed
by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors, including audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting by the statutory
auditors and the reviews performed by management and the Audit
Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal
financial controls were adequate and effective during Financial Year
2021-22.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY AND VIGIL MECHANISM

The provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014,
relating to formulation of Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism for
Directors and employees does not apply on the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as on 31st March, 2022,
comprises of Shri Rajiv Kumar as Chairman, Shri Y K Dixit and
Smt. Manju Gupta as Members of the Committee.

The purpose of the Committee is to assist the Board in formulating
Company’s CSR policy and program(s).

The responsibilities of the CSR Committee are to:

formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken
by the Company as specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013
and to suggest the changes to the said Policy from time to time;

recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities
referred to in clause (i); and

monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from
time to time.
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22.

23.

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of
the Company and the initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR
activities during the year and Annual Report on CSR activities as
required to be given under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014 is annexed herewith as “Annexure 4”.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The constitution of Audit Committee as on 31st March, 2022 comprises
of Shri Pramod Kumar as Chairman, Shri Rajiv Kumar and Shri Y K Dixit
as Members.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 12th May, 2022 have
decided to dissolve the Audit Committee with immediate effect.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are not applicable to the Company,
being a government company.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH
RELATED PARTIES

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial
year were done on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of
business. During the year, the Company has not entered into any
contract/arrangement/transaction with related parties which could be
considered material in accordance with the policy of the Company on
materiality of related party transaction.

The details of Related Party Transactions, as required under Indian
Accounting Standard-24 (IndAS-24), are provided in the accompanying
Financial Statements forming part of this Annual Report. Form AOC-2
pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is set out as “Annexure
5” to this Report.

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

Particulars with respect to conservation of energy, technology
absorption, foreign exchange earnings & outgo, pursuant to Section 134
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended 31st March 2022 are annexed
as “Annexure-6”.
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DISCLOSURES UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
THE WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL)
ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with
the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

During the period under review no complaint was filed under Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts
which may impact the going concern status of the Company and its
future operations.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the
dedicated efforts and valuable services with which the entire team of the
Company workers at all sites/offices and achieved commendable
progress.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors would like to acknowledge their sincere appreciation for the
co-operation received from various Departments and Undertakings of the
Government of India, Government of Himachal Pradesh and Undertakings
of the Central & State Governments, Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission, Central Electricity Authority and other concerned Govt.
Departments / agencies at the Central and State level.

On behalf of the Board

(MANJU GUPTA) (PRAMOD KUMAR)
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
DIN:08820741 DIN:08132119

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 22nd September, 2022



COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF POWERGRID HIMACHAL TRANSMISSION LIMITED FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

The preparation of financial statements of Powergrid Himachal Transmission Limited for
the year ended 31 March 2022 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company.
The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section
139(7) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section
143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their
Audit Report dated 12 May 2022.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of Powergrid Himachal Transmission Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2022 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit
has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditor
and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditor and company personnel and a

selective examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge
which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditor’s report under

section 143 (6} (b} of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(Deepak %apoor)

Place: New Delhi Director General of Audit (Energy),
Dated: 3:? July 2022 Delhi



Annexure-2

NAVEEN CHHABRA & ASSOCIATES 7/76, 1% Floor, Sector-5, Rajendra
Practicing Company Secretary Nagar, Near Rajendra Nagar
GSTIN: 09AHDPCO0136H1ZV Metro Station, Shahibabad,

Delhi NCR, Ghaziabad, Uttar
Pradesh-201005,

Mobile -9811540784

E-mail- fcsnaveenl0@gmail.com

naveencs naveench@yahoo.co.in

Form No. MR-3

Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014
To,
The Members,
Powergrid Himachal Transmission Limited
B-9, Qutab Institutional Area,
Katwaria Sarai, New Delhi - 110016

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by
Powergrid Himachal Transmission Limited (U40101DL2006PLC154627)
wholly owned subsidiary company of Power Grid Corporation of India Limited
(A Government of India Enterprise) (Formerly called Jaypee Powergrid Ltd,
a Joint Venture Company) during the audit period (hereinafter called the
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Powergrid Himachal Transmission Limited
books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in our opinion, the Company
has, during the audit period ended on March 31, 2022 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

[ have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on

March 31, 2022 according to the provisions and the Rules made thereunder:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;


mailto:fcsnaveen10@gmail.com
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(i) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made thereunder to extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings -- [Not Applicable to
the Company during the Audit Period under review]

(iii) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act)): -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011- [Not Applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period under review];

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015 - [Not Applicable to the Company during
the Audit Period under review];

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 - [Not Applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period under review];

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2018 -[Not Applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period under review];

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008 - [Not Applicable to the Company during
the Audit Period under review];

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act
and dealing with client - [Not Applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period under review];

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 - [Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period under review]; and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018 - [Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period under review];

(iv) As confirmed and certified by the management, following law is specifically
applicable to the Company based on Sectors/ Industry:

The Electricity Act, 2003 and Rules and Regulations made there under.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable Clauses/Regulations of
Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ICS]J).

During the period under review the Company as confirmed by the
Management has complied with the provisions of the Company Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, and Standards etc. mentioned above

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as
‘Annexure -A’ and form an integral part of this report.

I further report that



The Company becomes subsidiary of Power Grid Corporation of India Limited
w.e.f 26.03.2021 and the wholly owned subsidiary of Power Grid Corporation
of India Limited with effect from 31.03.2021.

[ have checked the compliance management system of the Company to obtain
reasonable assurance about the adequacy of systems in place to ensure
compliance of specifically applicable laws and this verification was done on
test basis. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
explanations given to us, I believe that the compliance management system
of the Company seems adequate to ensure compliance of laws specifically
applicable to the Company.

[ further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted.
The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda generally were sent in advance or at
shorter notice wherever required, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board
were carried out unanimously.

I further report that there are based on the information received and records
maintained there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit review:

J Mrs. Manju Gupta (DIN:08820741) was appointed as Additional Director
of the Company w.e.f 11.06.2021

o Mr. Tilak Chandra Sarmah (DIN:07383185) ceased to be Director of the
Company w.e.f 18.01.2022 and Mr. Yugesh Kumar Dixit (DIN:09473467)
was appointed as Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 07.02.2022.

o Shri. Sreekant Kandikuppa (DIN:06615674) ceased to be Director of the
Company w.e.f. 23.02.2022.

For Naveen Chhabra & Associates
Company Secretaries

Naveen Kumar Chhabra

Membership No. F 8521

C.P No. 9555

UDIN:F008521D001023661

Place: Ghaziabad

Date: 22/09/2022

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed
as Annexure A and from forms an integral part of this report.
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To,

Annexure A
Secretarial Audit Report

The Members,

Powergrid Himachal Transmission Limited
B-9, Qutab Institutional Area

Katwaria Sarai

New Delhi-110016

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the
management of our company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
secretariat record. The verification done on the random test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe
that the processes and practice, we followed provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial
records and books of Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation
about the compliance of laws, rules and regulation and happening of
events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulation, standards is the responsibility of management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on the random
test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which
the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Naveen Chhabra & Associates
Company Secretaries

Naveen Kumar Chhabra
Membership No. F 8521
C.P No. 9555
UDIN:F008521D001023661
Place: Ghaziabad

Date: 22/09/2022
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Annexure-3

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2022
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of
the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. | CIN U40101DL2006PLC 154627
2. | Registration Date 05/10/2006
3. | Name of the Company POWERGRID HIMACHAL TRANSMISSION LIMITED (earlier Jaypee

Powergrid Limited)

4. | Category/Sub-category of the | COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES/INDIAN GOVERNMENT COMPANY

Company

5. | Address of the Registered B-9, QUTAB INSTITUTIONAL AREA, KATWARIA SARAI, NEW DELH-
office & contact details 110016

6. | Whether listed company UNLISTED

7. | Name, Address & contact ALANKIT ASSINGNMENTS LIMITED
details of the Registrar & 205-208 ANARKALI COPLEX JHANDEWALAN EXTENSION NEW DELHI-
Transfer Agent, if any. 110055

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the
company shall be stated

S. No. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the company
products / services Product/service
1 TRANSMISSION OF POWER N/A 100 %

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SN Name and Description of main CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % OF | APPLICABLE
products / services SUBSIDIARY | SHARES | SECTION
/ASSOCIATE | HELD
S
1 Power Grid Corporation of India L40101DL1989 HOLDING 100% 2(87)
Limited GOI038121




IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share

Equity)

A) Category-wise Share Holding

Capital Breakup as % to Total

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year [As % Change
Shareholders [As on 01-April-2021) on 31-March-2022] during
the year
De-mat Physical Total % of De-mat Physical Total % of
Total Total
Shares Shares
A. Promoter’s
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 600* 0 600* 0 600% 0 600* 0 _
b) Central Govt - - - - ) - - ) _
c) State Govt(s) - - - - ] B _ ] i
d) Bodies Corp. 299,999,400 0 299,999,400 | 100 299,999,400 | 0 299,999,400 | 100 -
e) Banks/ FI ) - - - ) - - ) _
f) Any other ) - - - ) - - ) _
Total shareholding of
Promoter (A) 300,000,000 0 300,000,000 | 100 300,000,000 | 0 300,000,000 | 100 -

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

¢) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance

Companies

g) FllIs

h) Foreign Venture

Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

i) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
in excess of Rs 1 lakh




c) Others (specify) -

Non Resident Indians

Overseas Corporate
Bodies

Foreign Nationals

Clearing Members

Trusts

HUF

Sub-total (B)(2):-

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs
& ADRs

Grand Total

(A+B+C) 300,000,000 0

300,000,000 | 100

300,000,000

0

300,000,000 | 100

*Jointly with POWERGRID & POWERGRID holds the beneficial interest

B) Shareholding of Promoter-

SN Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the year % change
Shareholder’s Name | year in
sharehol
No. of % of total | %of No. of Shares % of total %of Shares ding
Shares Shares of | Shares Shares of the | Pledged / during
the Pledged / company encumbered the year
company | encumber- to total shares
ed to total
shares
1 Power Grid
Corporation of India
Limited 300000000 100 - 300000000 100 - _
TOTAL 300000000 100 30 300000000 100

C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl | Shareholders Shareholding at the Date Increase/ | Reason Cumulative holding
. Name beginning of the year (Decrease) during the year 2021-22
N 01.04.2021 in
o. sharehold
No of shares % of % of ing No of shares % of
total shares total
shares pledg shares
of the ed of the
Compa encu Compa
ny mbere ny
d to
total
1 Power Grid 30,00,00,000 100 ) No change 30,00,00,000 100
Corporation of
India Limited
30,00,00,000 100 30,00,00,000 100
Total _




D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SN For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the
Shareholders beginning year
of the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of the
the company

company
At the beginning of the year - -

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters | - - - -
Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for
increase /decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year - - - N

E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN Shareholding of each Directors and Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding during the
each Key Managerial Personnel of the year 01.04.2021 Year 31.03.2022
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
1 Shri Rajiv Kumar - - - -
2 Shri Pramod Kumar - - 100* -
3 Smt. Manju Gupta _ _ _ _
4 Shri Y K Dixit _ _ _ _
5 Shri B. Das, CFO - - - -
6 Shri Rajeev Kumar, Company - - - -
Secretary

*The beneficial interest in the shares is held by Power Grid Corporation of India Limited.

V. INDEBTEDNESS- Indebtedness of the Company (including interest outstanding/
accrued but not due for payment) for Financial year 2021-22.

(Rs. In Lakh)

Secure.d Loans . Unsecured Deposits | Total Indebtedness
excluding deposits Loans
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial
year
i) Principal Amount* 15884.78 - - 15884.78
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - j
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - j
Total (i+ii+iii) 15884.78 - - 15884.78
Change in Indebtedness during the financial
year
* Addition 15914.23 _ _ 15914.23
* Reduction 20284.78 - - 20284.78
Net Change 11514.23 - - 11514.23
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
. . 11514.23 - 11514.23
i) Principal Amount : -
ii) Interest due but not paid - - 3 }
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - } )
Total ( i+ii+iii ) 11514.23 - - 11514.23




VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

(Rs. In Lakh)

SN.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Director

Shri Rajiv Kumar
(Whole-Time Director
& CEQ)

Total Aamount

Gross salary

112.52

112.52

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income- tax Act,
1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

Others,
(Employer Contribution to PF)

Total (A)

112.52

112.52

B. Remuneration to other directors

SN.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

Independent
Directors

Fee for attending
board committee
meetings

Commission

Others, please
specify

Total (1)

Other Non-
Executive
Directors

Fee for attending
board committee
meetings

Commission

Others, please
specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial
Remuneration




C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than Managing Director/
Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

(Rs. In Lakh)

S.No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total Amount
Shri Rajeev Kumar | Shri B. Das (Chief
(Company Secretary) Financial Officer )
1
Gross Salary 21.12 79.45 100.57
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of - - -
the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961 - - -
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, - - -
1961
2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission
- as % of profit - - -
- others, specify.....
5 Others,
(Employer Contribution to PF) - - -
Total (A) 21.12 79.45 100.57

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the Brief Details of Penalty Authority Appeal made,
Companies Act Description / Punishment/ [RD / NCLT/ if any (give Details)

Compounding fees COURT]
imposed

A. COMPANY

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty -

Punishment -

Compounding -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty -

Punishment

Compounding
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Annexure 4

FOTMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE

INCLUDED

IN THE BOARD REPORTS FOR FINANCIAL YEAR

COMMENCING ON OR AFTER 15T DAY OF APRIL, 2020

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy including overview of projects
or programmes proposed to be undertaken
As part of its initiatives under “Corporate Social Responsibility” (CSR),
the Company has decided to undertake projects in the area of promoting
education, preventive Healthcare, day care centers at construction sites
etc. These projects are in accordance with the activities covered under
Schedule VII of the Companies Act,2013.

Further, brief features of CSR Policies are as under: -

o The Company would spend not less than 2% of the average Net Profits of
the Company, calculated in accordance with the Section 198 of the
Companies Act, 2013, made during the three immediately preceding
financial years;

o CSR activities shall be undertaken by the Company, as projects/
programs of activities as prescribed under Schedule VII of the Companies
Act, 2013; and
The Board may decide to undertake CSR activities either by itself or
through a registered trust or a registered society or a company
established by the Company, or its holding or subsidiary or associate
company under Section 8 of the Act or otherwise.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee

S. Name of Director | Designation/ Number of Number
no. Nature of meetings of | meetings
Director CSR CSR
Committee Committee
held during | attended
the year during the year
1 Shri Rajeev Whole time 1 1
Kumar, Chairman | Director & CEO
2 Shri Y K Dixit, Non-Independent | 1 N.A.
Member Non-Executive
3 Smt. Manju Non-Independent | 1 N.A.
Gupta, Member Non-Executive

Note: Shri T. C. Sarmah, ceased to be Chairman/ member of the
Committee w.e.f. 18tk January, 2022 consequent of his cessation as
Director. Shri Rajiv Kumar and Shri Pramod Kumar are co-opted as

members of the CSR Committee w.e.f. 7th February, 2022
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3. Provide the weblink where composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy
and CSR Projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of
the Company

The Company does not have website.

4. Provide the details of Impact management of CSR Projects carried out in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach report)

Not Applicable
5. Details of the amount available for det off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of

Rule 7 of Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules,
2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any

Sl. No. | Financial Amount available for| Amount required to be
Year set-off from preceding| set-off from preceding
financial year (in Rs.) | financial year (in Rs.)
Not Applicable

6. Average net profits of the Company as per Section 135(5): Rs.
65,36,45,009/-

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section
135(5): Rs. 1,30,72,9000
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programs or activities of
the previous financial years: - Nil
(c) Amount required to be set off for the Financial Year, if any: - Nil
(d) Total CSR Obligation for the Financial Year: - Rs. 1,30,72,900

8. (a) CSR Amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: -
Total Amount
amount unspent
spent for the
Financial
Year (in Rs.)
Total Amount Amount Transferred To any
Transferred To Unspent| Fund Specified Under
Account as CSR Schedule VII as per Second
Per Sec.| Proviso Sec 135(5)
135(6)
Amount Date of| Name of] Amount (in| Date  of
transfer the Fund | Rs.) transfer
1,30,73,000 | Nil Nil N.A. Nil N.A.

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial
year: Nil
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(c ) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the
financial year: Rs. 1,30,73,000 were transferred in PM CARES Fund, a
Fund established under Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overhead: - Nil

(e ) Amount spent on the Impact Assessment, if applicable: - Nil

(f) Total amount spent for the financial year (8b+8c+8d+8e): -
Rs. 1,30,73,000

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: - Nil

Sl. No.| Particulars Amount (in
Rs.)

(i) Two percent of average Net Profit of the 1,30,72,900
Company as per Section 135(5)

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 1,30,73,000

(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year (ii-i) | Nil

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or Nil
programs or activities of the previous financial
year, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Nil
financial years {(iii)-(iv)}

9. (9) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial
years:- Nil
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing

projects of the preceding financial year(s): - Nil
10. In case of creation of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the
asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: -

Not applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of
the average net profit as per Section 135(5): - Not Applicable
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Annexure - 5

FORM - AOC 2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule
8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by
the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188
of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under
third proviso thereto.

A) Details of Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions not at
Arm’s Length Basis - NIL

S.No. Particulars Details

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of N.A
relationship

b) Nature of Contracts/Arrangements/Transactions N.A

C) Duration of the Contracts / Arrangements/ N.A
Transactions

d) Salient terms of the Contracts or Arrangements N.A
or Transactions including the value, if any

e) Justification for entering into such Contracts or N.A
Arrangements or Transactions

f) Date(s) of approval by the Board N.A

g) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed N.A
in General Meeting as required under first
proviso to section 188
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B) Details of Material Contracts or Arrangement or Transactions at
Arm’s Length Basis - Nil

S.No. Particulars Details

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of N.A
relationship

b) | Nature of Contracts/Arrangements/Transactions N.A

c) Duration of the Contracts / Arrangements / N.A
Transactions

d) | Salient terms of the Contracts or Arrangements N.A
or Transactions including the value, if any:

e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: N.A

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A

On behalf of the Board

(MANJU GUPTA) (PRAMOD KUMAR)
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
DIN:08820741 DIN:08132119

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 22nd September, 2022
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Annexure- 6

As per Rule 8(3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, following
information is provided:

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Every effort is being made towards conservation of energy at all levels
and to develop an efficient and minimum- loss transmission network.

(B)TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

As regards the information with respect to Technology Absorption, the
project has utilized and absorbed the modern technology for the
construction of transmission line consistent with the leading practices
adopted by Central Transmission Utility i.e. Power Grid Corporation of
India Limited, which has provided the consultancy for design and
engineering. Your Company has been undertaking the operations and
maintenance of the transmission line, associated bays and substation
equipments and has adopted state-of-the art condition monitoring
techniques, such as Frequency Response Analysis for Reactors,
Dynamic Contract Resistance Measurement for Circuit Breakers off line
fault locator for lines etc.

(C)FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Foreign Exchange earnings: - NIL

Foreign Exchange outgo: - NIL
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APTand Co LLP \

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of Powergrid Himachal Transmission Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Powergrid Himachal
Transmission Limited (‘the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive income), Statement of
Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS"} and accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, the Profit (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAlI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

In respect of recognition of revenue from transmission assets for which final tariff order has been
received from CERC, revenue has been recognised considering certain adjustments for which final
determination shall be made upon the truing up order for block period 2019-24. (Refer Note 24)

Our opinion is not modified in this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

“‘
Sr. Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit ((Q
No. P
1. Recognition of Revenue from Transmission | Qur audit approach involved: Obtaining FQ

Income Transmission Income is accounted | understanding of the CERC Tariff Regulations, Orde
for based on tariff orders notified by the | Circulars, Guidelines and the Company's intern
CERC. In case of transmission projects | circulars and procedures in respect of recognition and
where final tariff orders are yet to be notified, | measurement of revenue from transmission of power.
transmission income is accounted for on | * Evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the design
rovisional basis as per Tariff Regulations | of Internal controls relating to recognition and

APT & CO (a Partnership Firm) converted into APT and Co LLP (a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP identity no: LLPIN AAL-8025) with effect from 23-01-2018

Office: 421, DLF Star Tower, NH-8, Exit -8, Gurgaon-122001(Haryana) India
Tel: 0124-4252455 E-mail: sanjeev@aptllp.com Website: www.aptlip.com
Head Office: A-2/36, Third Floor, Safdarjung Enclave, New Delhi-110029



and Orders of the CERC in earlier cases.
Difference, if any, is accounted for on
issuance of final Tariff Orders by the CERC.
As at each reporting date, transmission
income also includes an accrual for services
rendered to the customers but not yet billed
i.e. Unbilled Revenue.

This is considered as Key Audit Matter due to
the nature and extent of estimates made as
per CERC Tariff Regulations and contracts
with customers for recognition of revenue.
(Refer Note No. 24 Standalone Financial
Statement)

measurement of revenue from Transmission. * Verified
the transmission revenue based on the CERC Tariff
Regulation, Orders, Circulars, Guidelines and the
company's internal circulars.

«Verified on test basis, the income recognised on
provisional basis as per the regulatory guidelines and
orders of the CERC in recent cases where tariff orders
were issued, for the assets whose final orders are yet
to be notified by CERC, based on the date of
commercial operation (DOCO) letters issued by
Regional technical heads, and capital cost, as certified
by the Management.

2, Deferred Tax Assets relating to MAT credit
entitlement

The Company has considered MAT credit in
anticipation of set off against the tax payable
in future years and created Deferred Tax
Asset for the same during the vyear.
Corresponding to the said MAT Credit
Entitlement, a Deferred Regulatory liability
payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent
periods as per CERC Tariff Regulations has
been recognized. We identified this as a key
audit matter because of the importance of this
matter to the intended users of the financial
statements and its materality and
requirement of judgement in assessing future
taxable profits for recognisition of MAT credit
entitlement. (Refer Note No.34 of Standalone
financial statements.)

Qur audit approach involved:

+ Reviewing the current status of availability of MAT
credits.

+ Assessing the related forecasts of future taxable
profits, evaluated the reasonableness and consistency
of the considerations/assumptions underlying the
preparation of these forecasts.

« Based on the above procedures performed, the
recognition and measurement of Deferred tax asset
relating to MAT credit entitlement and corresponding
Regulatory Deferral Liability towards customers, is
considered adequate and reasonable.

3. Assessment_of Contingent liabilities in
respect of certain litigations including
land _compensation, direct and indirect
taxes, various claims filed by other parties

not acknowledged as debt.

There is a high level of judgement required in
estimating the contingent liabilities. The
company's assessment of contingent
iiabiiities is supported by the facts of the
matter, Company’'s judgement thereon, past
experience and advices from legal and
independent tax consultants wherever
necessary. We identified the above area as
Key Audit Matters in view of associated
uncertainty relating to the outcome of these
matter. (Refer Note No. 43 of Standalone
financial statements)

We have obtained an understanding of the Company’s
procedure in respect of estimation and disclosure of
contingent liabilities and adopted the following audit
procedure:

+ Reviewing the current status and material
developments of legal matters.

« Examining recent orders from competent authorities
and/or communication received from various
authorities, judicial forums and follow-up action
thereon.

- Review and analysis of evaluation of the contentions
of the company through discussions, collection of
details of the subject matter under consideration, the
likely outcome and consequent potential outflows on
those issues.

information Other than the Standalone financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.




In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. I, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professicnal skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standaione financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting frem error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design aydit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)() of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concemn basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence

and




obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. Interms of section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure ‘B’ our report on
the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and expianations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Change in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Ruie 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) in view of exemption given vide notification no. G.S.R. 463(E) dated June 5, 2015, issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, provisions of Section 164(2) of the Act regarding disqualification of
Directors, are not applicable to the Company.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Parent Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C”.

g) Pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India, provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013,
are not applicable to the Company, being a Government Company; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of the pending litigations on its financial statements,
refer note no. 43

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including the derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  The Management has represented that to the best of its knowledge & beiief, the Company
has not advanced, loaned or invested any funds (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) in any other persons or entities, including




foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

v. The Management has represented that to the best of its knowledge & belief, the Company
has not received any funds from any persons or entities including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (*"Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

- Based on such audit procedures considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause vi and v contain any material mis-statement.

vii The Company has declared or paid the dividend during the year and the same is in
compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act 2013.

4. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ report under Section 197(16):

in our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not paid or provided any managerial remuneration to any director during the year.

For APT & Co LLP.
Chartered Accountants,
Firm Registration)\lumber: 014621C/

Sanjeev Aggarwal
Partner
Membership Number: 501114

Place : Gurugram
Date:12-05-2022



Annexure 'A' To the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the standalone
financial statement of PowerGrid Himachal Transmission Limited

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the standaione financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, we report that:

i) (a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a) (B) The Company does not have any Intangible Assets. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3 (i) (a) (B) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to the Company.

(b) Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification of the assets.

(c) On the basis of information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable
properties are held in the name of the Jaypee PowerGrid Limited (JPL). The name of the JPL
was changed to PowerGrid Himachal transmission Limited (PHTL) with the Registrar of the
Companies, however the name on the title deed is still in name of JPL.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. It has no
intangible assets.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and the rules made thereunder.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (i) (e) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020
are not applicable to the Company.

ii) In respect of inventory:

(a) The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ii}(a) of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us,
during the year, the Company has not been sanctioned Working Capital limits in excess of Rs §
Crore in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ii)(b) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 are
not applicable to the Company.

iiiy According to the information and explanations given to us and on examination of records;-

a) The Company, during the year, has neither made any investments in, nor provided any
guarantee or security nor granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, thus,
provisions of clause (i) (a) & (b) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 are not
applicable to the Company and thus all other subclause under this clause are not applicable to
the company.

iv) The Company, during the year, has neither made any Loans, Investments in, nor provided any
guarantee or security. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us and
based on review of records, provisions of sections 185 & 186 of the Act are not applicable to the

company.

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, since the Company has
not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits therefore the question of
the compliance of any directives issued by the Reserve Bank of india and the provisions of sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under

does not arise.




vi) We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the company specified by the Central
Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of
Transmission Operations of the Company and we are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed
records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made detailed examination of the
cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii) a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to
the extent applicable to it. Further, no undisputed statutory dues were outstanding as on last day of
the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date, they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given, the following disputed demand in relation to
statutory dues mention above in vii (a) have not been deposited-

Name of Statute Assessment Year Amount
Income Tax 2014-15 72,920
Income Tax 2015-16 37,550
Income Tax 2017-18 27,030
Income Tax 2018-19 1,15,61,420
Income Tax 2020-21 88,31,330
Income Tax 2021-22 29,485

The income tax demand as shown above are excluding the notional interest levied by the
department since the actual liability of the same would depend upon the outcomes of the appeal so
filed with the appellate authority.

viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
transactions not recorded in books of accounts which have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause (viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

ix) (a) According to the information and expianations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been declared
a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) The Company has neither obtained any term loans nor applied them during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (ix) (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company, has nct raised the fund on short term basis and thus this clause is not applicable
on the company.

(e) The Company, during the year, has taken loan from its hoiding company i.e., Power Grid
Corporation of India Limited however the same was not used to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (ix) (e) of the Order
are not applicable.

(f) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (ix) (f) of

the Order are not applicable.




x) (a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x) (a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(x) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) Auditors have not filed report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle-blower complaints were
received by the Company during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) (c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company, accordingly paragraph 3(xii) (a) to (c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xili) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, all transactions
entered with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable
accounting standards. Further, the provisions of section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

xiv) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business. We have considered the internal audit
reports of the company issued till date, for the period under audit

xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with him. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xvi) (a) of the order are not applicable.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the order are not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the order are not
appiicable.

(d) As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have more than one
CIC in the Group. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) (d) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

xvii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
incurred cash losses during the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of Statutory Auditors during the year. Accordingly, provisions of
clause 3 (xviii) of the order are not applicable to the Company. Our appointment has been made by
the Comptroller and Auditor General of India pursuant to change in status of company as Public
sector undertaking.

xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors




XX)

and management plans, support letters from the holding company and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report which impairs Company's ability to meet its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall
due.

The provisions of Section 135 relating to CSR are Duly complied with and there is no unspent CSR
amount that is to be deposited in Investors and Education Protection Fund. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause (xx) (a) & (b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us in the course of audit, there is no

subsidiary or associate company of PHTL that requires consolidation with the financial statements
of PHTL. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xxi) is not applicable on the company.

For APT & Co LLP.
Chartered Accountants,

Firm Registration /\lumber: 014621C/N500088

Sanjeev Aggarwal
Partner
Membership Number: 501114

UDIN: 2250 1114 RTFHKT9959

Place : Gurugram
Date:12-05-2022



Annexure ‘B’ to the Auditors Report

As referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of the Powergrid
Himachal Transmission Limited, on the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31

March 2022.

S. No. | Directions Auditors Comments

1. Whether the Company has a system in place | The company is having ERP system (SAP) in
to process all the accounting transactions place for processing all accounting
through IT system? If yes, the implications of | transactions. Based on our verification, no
processing of accounting transactions outside | accounting transaction is being recorded/
IT system on the integrity of the accounts processed other than through the ERP
along with the financial implications, if any, | system in place.
may be stated.

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an | Based on our verification and explanations
existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of | and information given to us, there were no
debts/loans/ interest etc. made by a lender to | cases of restructuring of an existing loan or
the company due to the company’s inability to | cases of waiver/ write off of debts/loan/
repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact | interest etc. made by a lender to the
may be stated. Whether such cases are | company due to the company’s inability to
properly accounted for? (Incase, lender is a | repay the loan.

Government company, then this direction is
also applicable for Statutory Auditor of lender
company). ]

3. Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/ | No Funds (grant/subsidy etc) received
receivable for specific schemes from Central/ /receivable for specific scheme from
State or its agencies were properly accounted | Central/State Government or its agencies.
for/utilized as per its term and conditions? List
the cases of deviation.

For APT & Co LLP.
Chartered Accountants,

Firm Registration Number: 01462

Sanjeev Aggarwal

Partner

Membership Number: 501114
UDIN: 22 5o || HATF

o

Place : Gurugram
Date:12-05-2022



Annexure 'C' to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the standalone financial
statement of Powergrid Himachal Transmission Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Powergrid
Himachal Transmission Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAIl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in alil material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management




and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including - the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financia! statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on “the internal control
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essentiai
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For APT & Co LLP.
Chartered Accountants,
Firm Registration Number: 014621C/N5§

H(c//

Sanjeev Aggarwal
Partner
Membership Number: 501114

UDIN: 9250 ) YUATFHKTY9959Y

Place : Gurugram
Date:12-05-2022




POWERGRID HIMACHAL TRANSMISSION LIMITED
. (formerly known as Jaypee Powergrid Limited)
~ CIN : U40101 DL2006PLC154627
B-9, Qutab Institutional Area, Katwaia Sarai, New Delhi - 110016
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022 )

(Rs. In Lakh)
. Note As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021
S i No. (Audited) (Audited)
A | ASSETS
1 | Non- current assets
(a) Property, Piant and Equipment 4 47 577.54 52,862.83
(b) Other Financial Assets 5 887.59 2,799.67
(c) Deferred Tax Asset 6 3,979.74 3,122.08
(d) Other Non Current Assets 7 171.74 172.24
52,616.61 58,956.82
2 | Current Assets
(a) Inventory - -
(b) Financial Assets
(i} Trade Receivables 8 2,989.94 3,344.57
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 92,24 3,778.27
(iii) Bank balances other than (i) above 10 974.46 -
(iv) Other Financial Assets 11 192.78 4.37
(c) Other Current Assets 12 1,046.45 983.24
5,295.87 8,110.45
Total Assets 57,912.48 67,067.27
B |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1| Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 30,000.00 30,000.00
(b) Other Equity 14 12,229.78 15,504.61
) 42,229.78 45,504.61
2 | Liabilities
(i)| Non Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 6,714.24 9,471.62
(ii) Other non-current financial liabilities - -
(b) Other Non Current Liabilities
Provisions 16 8.62 9.39
6,722.86 9,481.01
(ii)| Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 4.800.00 6,413.16
(i) Trade Payables
(a) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises - -
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 18 51.44 51.34
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 19 79.62 73.82
(b} Other Current Liabilities 20 40.17 5.10
{c) Provisions 21 8.87 2,416.15
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 22 - -
4,980.10 8,959.57
Regulatory Deferral Account Balances 23 3,979.74 3,122.08
Total Equity and Liabilities 57,912.48 67,067.27

Accounting Policies and Notes form an integral part of Financial Statements 18&51
As per Our Report of even date For an

For APT & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration,No. 014621C/N500088

R

half of the Board /oL Directors
e
Zl'ﬁ?{

v Kumar
CEO

(opndd

Sanjeev Aggarwal Rajeev Kuma Bhabatosh Das
Partner Company Secretary CFO
M. No. 561114
Date : 12-05-2022
Place : Gurugram
UpEN RIS ) 22 Geil) o AT FHKTI95



POWERGRID HIMACHAL TRANSMISSION LIMITED
(formerly known as Jaypee Powergrid Limited)
CIN : U40101DL2006PLC 154627
B-9, Qutab Institutional Area, Katwaia Sarai, New Delhi - 110016

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(Rs. In Lakh)
si Note For the year ended | For the year ended
No.. Particulars No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

(Audited) (Audited)
| | Revenue from operations 24 13,365.06 14,774.96
Il | Other Income 25 277.98 508.53
Il | Total Income (I+l1) 13,643.04 15,281.49
IV | Expenses
Employee benefits expense 26 423.05 322.68
Finance costs 27 1,268.59 2,362.82
Depreciation and amortization Expense 28 '5,288.48 5,352.90
Other expenses 29 630.20 757.11
Total expenses (IV) 7,610.32 8,795.51
V | Profit/(loss) before Exceptional items, Tax and
Regulatory Deferral Account Balance (V) 6,032.72 6,485.98
V1 | Exceptional ltems - -
VIl | Profit/(loss) before tax & Regulatory Deferral
Accour(lt Baiances (V-vh) ° Y 6,032.72 6.485.98
VI | Tax Expense:
(1) Current tax (1,054.04) (1,086.45)
(2) Deferred tax 30 857.66 2,511.48
(196.38) 1,425.01 |
Profit (Loss) for the period before Regulato
i Deferrzgl Ach)unt Balance (VIL-VIIT) — it i
X | Net movement in Regulatory Deferral Account
Balances - (Income)/gIJExpenZe (Net of tax) 30 (707.81) (4'910'91)
X! | Profit (Loss) for the period (IX+X) 5,128.53 3,000.00
Xil | items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(Net of Tax) : 31 (3.35) 0.08
Xl | Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XI+XIH) 5,125.18 3,000.06
Earnings per equity share including movement in
XIV |Regulatory Deferrat Account Balances 32 1.71 1.00
(Face value of 210/- each): Basic & Diluted (In ¥)
Earnings per equity share excluding movement in
XV |Regulatory Deferral Account Balances (Face value of [ 32 1.95 2.64
%10/- each): Basic & Diluted (In %)
Accounting Policies and Notes form an integral part of Financial Statements 1 & 51 a
As per Our Report of even date For afjd gprbehalf of the Board of Directors
For APT & COLLP an zfﬂw
Chartered Accountants amod Kumar iv Kumar
Firm Registration, No. 014621C/N500088 Director CEO
/_‘{Wf a ey Ve, ky;sﬁ
Sanjeev Aggarwal Rajeev Kumar Bhabatosh Das
Partner Company Secretary CFO
M. No. 501114

Date : 12-05-2022
Place : Gurugram
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POWERGRID HIMACHAL TRANSMISSION LIMITED (formeriy known as Jaypee Powergrid Limited)

CIN : U40101DL2006PLC 154627

B-9, Qutab Institutional Area, Katwaia Sarai, New Delhi - 110016

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars (Rs. In Lakh)
As at 01st April 2021 30,000.00
Change in equity share capital -
As at 31st March 2022 30,000.00
Particulars (Rs. In Lakh)
As at 01st April 2020 30,000.00
Change in equity share capital -
As at 31st March 2021 30,000.00
B. Other Equity (Rs. In Lakh
Reserve and Surplus Other
Particulars General Retained |Comprehensi Total
Reserve Earning ve Income
As at 01st April 2021 4,157.89 11,339.90 6.82 15,504.61
Total Comprehensive Income for the period - 5,128.53 (3.35) 5.125.18
interim Dividend for FY 2020-21 - (6,000.00) - (6,000.00
Interim Dividend for FY 2021-22 - (2,400.00) - (2,400.00
4,157.89 8,068.43 3.47 12,229.78
(Rs. in Lakh)
Reserve and Surplus Other
Particulars General Retained |Comprehensi Total
Reserve Earning ve Income
As at 01st April 2020 4.157.89 9,089.90 6.76 13,254.55
Total Comprehensive Income for the period - 3,000.00 0.06 3,000.06
Final Dividend for FY 2019-20 - (750.00) - (750.00)
4,157.89 11,339.90 6.82 15,504.61
Accounting Policies and Notes form an integral part of Financial Statements 1&51
As per Our Report of even date For and oef behalf o Board of Directors
.\/*/'/wm IR, _
For APT & COLLP piee— Weernaf —
Chartered Accountants Praméd Kumar v Kumar
Director CEO

Firm Regist;;ﬁc:;l_\lﬁ. 014621C/N500088

Sanjeev Aggarwal P
Partner - nd CQ
M. No. 501114 /

Date : 12-05-2022
Place : Gurugram

Mé}ﬁ‘f Jewmay

Kumar
Company Secretary

Lok

Bhabatosh Das
CFO

VDI N MNY




POWERGRID HIMACHAL TRANSMISSION LIMITED
{formerty known as Jaypee Powergnd Limilad)
Statement of Cash fMlows lor the Year endad 318t March, 2022

e iRs. In L;*h

artic For the yesr ended | For the year ended
P.
weals 31st March, 2022 | 31t March, 2021
_____,._.___—.———---I—-l

Cash Now from operating activities

Net Profil from Profit and Loss Stalomant §,126.18 3.000.06
Add 1) Income tax expense recongnised in PAL 903 48 3.48599
2) Depreciation 5,288.48 §.352.90
! 1.268 59 2362 B2
(818 (146.32)
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1.1.

21

POWERGRID HIMACHAL TRANSMISSION LTD.
(A WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF POWERGRID)
(formerly known as Jaypee Powergrid Ltd.)

Notes to Financial Statements
Corporate and General Information

JAYPEE POWERGRID LIMITED (JPL) was a joint venture between Jaiprakash Power Ventures Limited
(earlier known as Jaiprakash Hydro Power limited) and Power Grid Corporation of India Limited
(POWERGRID). The joint venture has been set up pursuant to a Shareholders' Agreement dated 22nd
February, 2007, Deed of Adherence dated 24th December, 2007 and Supplementary Shareholders
Agreement dated 25th March, 2010. The Company was incorporated for commissioning of 400kV Quad
Bundle Conductor Double circuit transmission line from the pothead yard of Karcham Wangtoo HEP at
Wangtoo to Abdullapur measuring 219.8 Km. and LILO of existing Baspa Jhakri double circuit line with
powerhouse bus of Karcham Wangtoo HEP at Wangtoo measuring about 4 Kms.

POWERGRID CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED (POWERGRID) has acquired 74% stake of JAYPEE
POWERGRID LIMITED(JPL) from Jaiprakash Power Ventures Limited (JPVL) on 25" March, 2021, thereby
increasing its stake from 26% to 100%. JPL has become a wholly owned subsidiary of POWERGRID w.e.f.
25t March, 2021 and JPL has changed its Name as POWERGRID HIMACHAL TRANSMISSION LIMITED
(PHTL) w.e.f. 05.07.2021 with change of Office address.

Registered Office: B-9, Qutab Institutional Area, Katwaria Sarai, New Delhi — 110016 (india)
Ph. : (11)26560112, 26564812, 26564892

Corp. Office: Power Grid Corporation of India Limited
Saudamini, Plot no 2, Sector 29, Gurgaon 122001, Ph.: 2571700-719

The Company has been granted licence for 25 years by Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC)
for. transmission of electricity issued on 1%t October,2007.

The financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 March, 2022 were approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 12" May, 2022.

Significant Accounting Policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as
given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the
financial statements.

Basis of Preparation

Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements are prepared in compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified), The Companies Act, 1956
and the provisions of Electricity Act 2003, each case, to the extent applicable and as amended thereafter.
Q aﬂd CO )




if) Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost convention
except following which have been measured at fair value:

e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value,
« Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value
iii) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rupees or Z), which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency and all amounts are rounded to the nearest Lakhs and two decimals thereof,
except as stated otherwise.

iv) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount
of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Although, such estimates and
assumptions are made on a reasonable and prudent basis taking into account all available information,
actual results could differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision effects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future years.

v) Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.
An asset is current when it is:
» Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in-normal operating cycle;
» Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
» Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

+ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability. is current when:
» It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
» ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
» It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

» There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current.

The Company recognizes twelve months period as its operating cycle.




2.2 Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company had opted to consider the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment as per previous
GAAP on the date of transition to Ind AS (15t April, 2015) to be the deemed cost as per Ind AS 101 ‘First time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards’.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment is initially measured at cost of acquisition/construction including any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. After initial recognition, Property, Plant and Equipment is
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Property, Plant and Equipment acquired as replacement of the existing assets are capitalized and its
corresponding replaced assets removed!/ retired from active use are derecognized.

If the cost of the replaced part or earlier inspection component is not available, the estimated cost of similar
new parts/inspection component is used as an indication of what the cost of the existing part/ inspection
component was when the item was acquired or inspection was carried out.

In the case of commissioned assets, deposit works/cost- plus contracts where final settlement of bills with
contractors is yet to be affected, capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to necessary adjustments
in the year of final settlement.

Assets and systems common to more than one transmission system is capitalized on the basis of technical
estimates/ assessments.

Transmission system assets are considered as ready for intended use from the date of commercial operation
declared in terms of CERC Tariff Regulations and capitalized accordingly.

The cost of land includes provisional deposits, payments/liabilities towards compensation, rehabilitation and
other expenses wherever possession of land is taken.

Expenditure on levelling, clearing and grading of land if incurred for construction of building is capitalized as
part of cost of the related building.

Spares parts whose cost is ¥5,00,000/- and above, standby equipment and servicing equipment which meets
the recognition criteria of Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized.

The acquisition or construction of some items of property, plant and equipment aithough not directly
increasing the future economic benefits of any particular existing item of property, plant and equipment, may
be necessary for the company to obtain future economic benefits from its other assets. Such items are

recognized as property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in carrying amount of assets when it is probable that
future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the company and cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

The cost of replacing part of an item of Property, Plant & Equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of
the item if it is probable that future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the company and
its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of
the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss
as incurred. '
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2.4

Derecognition

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected
from their use or upon their disposal.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Capital Work-In-Progress (CWIP)

Cost of material, erection charges and other expenses incurred for the construction of Property, Plant and
Equipment are shown as CWIP based on progress of erection work till the date of capitalization.

Interest during construction and expenditure (net) allocated to construction as per policy above are kept as
a separate item under CWIP and apportioned to the assets being capitalized in proportion to the closing
baiance of CWIP.

Deposit works/cost-plus contracts are accounted for on the basis of statement received from the contractors
or technical assessment of work compieted.

Unsettied liability for price variation/exchange rate variation in case of contracts is accounted for on estimated
basis as per terms of the contracts.

Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets under development

The Company had opted to consider the carrying value of Intangible Assets as per previous GAAP on the
date of transition to Ind AS (15t April, 2015) to be the deemed cost as per Ind AS 101 ‘First time Adoption of
Indian Accounting Standards’.

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure on already capitalized Intangible assets is capitalised when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in an existing asset and is amortised prospectively.

The cost of software (which is not an integral part of the related hardware) acquired for internal use and
resulting in significant future economic benefits is recognized as an intangible asset when the same is ready

for its use.

Afforestation charges for acquiring right-of-way for laying transmission lines are accounted for as intangible
assets on the date of capitalization of related transmission lines.

Expenditure incurred, eligible for capitalization under the head Intangible Assets, are carried as “Intangibie
Assets under Development” till such assets are ready for their intended use.

Expenditure on research is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

Expenditure on development activities shall be recognised as Intangible asset if it meets the eligibility criteria
as per Ind AS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’, otherwise it shall be recognised as an expense.

An item of Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as
the difference between the net disposal peesgeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss yheR$is o5k




2.5 Depreciation / Amortisation

Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation/amortisation on the items of property, plant and equipment related to transmission business is
provided on straight line method following the rates and methodology notified by the CERC for the purpose
of recovery of tariff and on property, plant and equipment of telecom and consultancy business is provided
on straight line method as per useful life specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 except for
property, plant and equipment specified in the following paragraphs.

Depreciation on buildings held as investment property is provided on straight line method as specified in
Schedule 1l of The Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on spares parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment which are capitalized, is provided
on straight line method from the date they are available for use over the remaining useful life of the related
assets of transmission business, following the rates and methodology notified by the CERC.

Depreciation on following items of property, plant and equipment is provided based on estimated useful life
as per technical assessment.

Particulars Useful life
a. Computers & Peripherals 3 Years
b. Servers & Network Components 5 years

Residual value of above assets is considered as Nil.
Mobile phones are charged off in the year of purchase.
Property, plant and equipment costing Z5,000/- or less, are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

Where the cost of depreciable property, plant and equipment has undergone a change due to
increase/decrease in long term monetary items on account of exchange rate fluctuation, price adjustment,
change in duties or similar factors, the unamortized balance of such asset is depreciated prospectively at the
rates and methodology as specified by the CERC Tariff Regulations, except for telecom and consultancy
business assets where residual life is determined on the basis of useful life of property, plant and equipment
as specified in Schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from Property, Plant and Equipment during the year is charged on
pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation for items of property, plant and equipment
other than items of property, plant and equipment related to transmission business are reviewed at each

financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, wherever required.
Right of Use Assets:

Right of Use assets are fully depreciated from the lease commencement date on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Leasehold land is fully amortized over lease period or life of the related plant whichever is lower in accordance
with the rates and methodology specified in CERC Tariff Regulation. Leasehold land acquired on perpetual
lease is not amortized.

o, -




2.6

2.7

Intangible Assets

Cost of software capitalized as intangible asset is amortized over the period of legal right to use or 3 years,
whichever is less with Nil residual value.

Afforestation charges are amortized over thirty-five years from the date of capitalization of related
transmission assets following the rates and methodology notified by Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission (CERC) Tariff Regulations.

Amortisation on additions to/deductions from Intangible Assets during the year is charged on pro-rata basis
from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed.

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset are reviewed at each financial
year-end and are accounted for as change in accounting estimates in accordance with Ind AS 8 “Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised (net
of income on temporary deployment of funds) as part of the cost of such assets till the assets are ready for
the intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment
of Assets’. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to disposal
and its valle in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”, or “CGU”).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses
recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that
the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that
the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

—t
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2.8

2.9

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at bank, and deposits held at call with banks having a
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost of Inventories comprises of cost of
purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is determined on the following basis: -

Raw material, construction materials is determined on weighted average basis.

Material-in-transit is valued at cost.
Finished goods and work in progress - cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a systematic
allocation of fixed and variable production overheads that are incurred in converting materials into finished

goods.

The store, consumables are fully charged as cost of consumption.
This year, there is no Inventory in PHTL.

2.10 Leases

Lease is a contract that conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether: (i) the contract involves use of an identified asset, (i) the customer has substantially all
the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of the lease and (jii) the customer has the
right to direct the use of the asset.

i) As a Lessee

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (ROU) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for lease with a term of
twelve months or less (i.e. short-term leases) and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. For
these short-term and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the Company recognizes the
lease payments on straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they wili be
exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the inception date of
the lease along with any initiai direct costs, restoration obligations and lease incentives received.

Subsequently, the right-of-use assets is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The Company applies
Ind AS 36 to determine whether a ROU asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss as
described in the accounting policy 2.7 op.lmpairment of non-financial assets”.
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The lease liability is initially measured at present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.

The interest cost on lease liability is expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless eligible for
capitalization as per accounting policy 2.6 on “Borrowing costs”. .

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the financial statements and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

ii) As a Lessor
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease.

a) Finance leases

The interest element of lease is accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease period based
on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment as per the tariff notified by
CERC.

b) Operating leases

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, the asset is capitalized as property, plant and equipment and depreciated over its
economic life. Rental income from operating iease is recognized over the term of the arrangement.

211 Employee benefits

2.11.1 Defined Benefit Plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and is recognized as an
expense except in so far as employment costs may be included within the cost of an asset.

Gratuity and leave encashment is a defined benefit obligation. The liability is provided for on the basis of
actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year. The actuarial valuation is done as per Projected
Unit Credit method.

Re measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to profit or loss through OC! in the period in which they
occur. Re measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

2.11.2 Short-term benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits i.e. wages and salaries, bonus, incentive,
annual leave and sick leave etc. expected to be paid in exchange for the service rendered by employees
are recognized as an expense except in so far as employment costs may be included within the cost of
an asset during the period when the employee renders the services.
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2.12 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial Assets
Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
o at amortised cost,
 at fair value through other comprehensive income
The classification depends on the following:
e the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
« the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset
Initial recognition and measurement

Al financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs, if any, that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.

Subsequeht measurement

Debt Instruments at Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.

Debt Instruments at Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified
from the equity to profit and loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. '

Debt instruments at Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Interest income and net gain or
loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at FVPL are recognised in statement of profit and
loss and presented within other income in the period in which it arises.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognized only when
i) The right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii) a) The company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset (or) retains
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows '~< ore recipients and




b) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset (or) the company
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset. -

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received/receivable is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

For trade receivables and unbilled revenue, the company applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS
109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company determines
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss.
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 -month ECL.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Company are contractual obligation tc deliver cash or another financial asset to
another entity or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that

are potentially unfavourable to the Company.
The Company’s financial liabilities include loans & borrowings, trade and other payables.
Classification, initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of financial liabilities not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of financial
liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are-subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (EIR). Any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction cbsts) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the
period of the borrowings using the EIR. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilities are derecognised.

The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Derecognition of financial liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised




Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settie on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.13 Income Tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income. In this case the tax is also recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Current income tax

The Current Tax is based on taxable profit for the year under the tax laws enacted and applicable to the
reporting period in the countries where the company operates and generates taxable income and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the company’s financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit and is accounted for using the Balance Sheet method. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India,
which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax
liability. MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured
reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

2.14 Regulatory Deferral Account Balances

Certain expenses and income, allowed under CERC regulations to be reimbursed by/passed on to
beneficiaries in future, are to be accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss as per the provisions of Ind
AS 114 ‘Regulatory Deferral Accounts’ and Guidance Note on “Accounting for Rate Regulated Activities”
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIl). Such expenses and income, to the extent
recoverable /payable as part of tariff under CERC Regulations are treated as Regulatory Deferral
Assets/Liabilities.




The Company presents separate line items in the Balance Sheet for:
(a) the total of all Regulatory Deferral Account Debit Balances; and
(b) the total of all Regulatory Deferral Account Credit Balances.

A separate line item is presented in the profit or loss section of the Statement of Profit and Loss for the net
movement in all Regulatory Deferral Account Balances for the reporting period.

Regulatory deferral accounts balances are adjusted in the year in which the same become recoverable from
or payable to the beneficiaries.

2.15 Revenue

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control over
a.product or service to a customer.

Significant Financing Component

Where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by
the customer exceeds one year, the Company assesses the effects of significant financing component in the
contract. As a consequence, the Company makes adjustment in the transaction prices for the effects of time
value of money.

2.16.1 Revenue from Operations
Transmission

Transmission Income is accounted for based on tariff orders notified by the CERC. In case of transmission
projects where final tariff orders are yet to be notified, transmission income is accounted for on provisional
basis as per tariff regulations and orders of the CERC in similar cases. Difference, if any, is accounted on
issuance of final tariff orders by the CERC. Transmission income in respect of additional capital expenditure
incurred after the date of commercial operation is accounted for based on expenditure incurred on year to
year basis as per CERC tariff regulations. As at each reporting date, transmission income includes an accrual
for services rendered to the customers but not yet billed i.e. Unbilled Revenue.

Rebates allowed to beneficiaries as early payment incentives are deducted from the amount of revenue.

The Transmission system incentive / disincentive is accounted for based on certification of availability by the
respective Regional Power Committees (RPCs) and in accordance with the CERC tariff regulations. Where
certification by RPCs is not available, incentive/disincentive is accounted for on provisional basis as per
estimate of availability by the company and differences, if any is accounted upon certification by RPCs.

Advance against depreciation (AAD), forming part of tariff pertaining upto the block period 2004-09, to
facilitate repayment of loans, was reduced from transmission income and considered as deferred income to
be included in transmission income in subsequent years. The outstanding deferred income in respect of AAD
is recognized as transmission income, after twelve years from the end of the financial year in which the asset
was commissioned, to the extent depreciation recovered in the tariff during the year is lower than depreciation
charged in the accounts.




2.16.2 Other Income

Interest income is recognized, when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists, on
a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate, using the
effective interest rate method (EIR).

Surcharge recoverable from trade receivables, liquidated damages, warranty claims and interest on
advances to suppliers are recognized when no significant uncertainty as to measurability and collectability

exists.

Application Fees towards Long Term Open Access (LTOA) as per CERC Guidelines is accounted for on
receipt.

Dividend income is recognized when right to receive payment is established.

Insurance claims for loss of profit are accounted for in the year of acceptance. Other insurance claims are
accounted for based on certainty of realization.

Revenue from rentals and operating leases is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the
substance of the relevant agreement.

2.17 Dividends

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends
are apprpved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on approval by Board of Directors.
Dividend distributed is recognised directly in equity.

2.18 Provisions and Contingencies

a) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the
time value of money is material, provisions are discounted. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

b) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management/ independent experts. These
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is
either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when inflow of economic
benefits is probable on the basis of judgment of management. These are assessed continually to ensure that
developments are appropriately reflectegd ancial statements.

-

.



2.19 Share capital and Other Equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.20 Prior Period ltems

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for prior period
presented in which the error occurred or if the error occurred before the earliest period presented, by restating
the opening statement of financial position.

2.21 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss for the year attributable to the shareholders
and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss for the year attributable to the shareholders
and weighted average number of equity and potential equity shares outstanding during the year, except
where the result would be anti-dilutive.

Additionally, basic and diluted earnings per share are computed using the earnings amounts excluding the
movements in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances.

2.22 Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash flows is prepared as per indirect method prescribed in the Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash
Flows'.

3. Critical Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which may significantly vary
from the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgment while applying the company’s
accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of
items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be
different than those originally assessed.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:
Revenue Recoghnition:

Transmission income is accounted for based on tariff orders notified by the CERC. In case of transmission
projects where final tariff orders are yet to be notified, transmission income is accounted for as per tariff
regulations and other orders of the CERC in similar cases. Differences, if any, are accounted on issuance of
final tariff orders by the CERC. Transmission income in respect of additional capital expenditure incurred
after the date of commercial operation is accounted for based on expenditure incurred on year to year basis
as per CERC tariff regulations.

Regulatory Deferral Balances:

Recognition of Regulatory Deferral Balances involves significant judgments including about future tariff
regulations since these are based on e the amounts expected to be recoverable/payable through

tariff in future.




Estimation of defined benefit obligation:
Estimation of defined benefit obligation involves certain significant actuarial assumptions which are listed in

Estimates and judgments are periodically evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the company and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Useful life of property, plant and equipment:

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment is based on a number of factors including the
effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the
industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain
the expected future cash flows from the asset.

The Company reviews at the end of each reporting date the useful life of plant and equipment, other than the
assets of transmission business which are govemed by CERC Regulations, and are adjusted prospectively,
if appropriate.

Provisions and contingencies:

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance
with Ind AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”. The evaluation of the likelihood of
the contingent events has required best judgment by management regarding the probability of exposure to
potential loss. Should circumstances change following unforeseeable developments, this likelihood could
alter.

Estimates and judgments are periodically evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the company and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the globa! health pandemic from COVID-19:

In assessing the recoverability of trade receivables and unbilled revenue, the company has considered
internal and external information up to the date of approval of these financial statements including credit
reports and economic forecasts. As the company’s revenue is based on CERC tariff order and falls under
essential services and based on the current indicators of future economic conditions, the company expects
to recover the carrying amount of these assets.

Assets held for sale:

Significant judgment is required to apply the accounting of non-current assets held for sale under Ind AS 105 —
“Noncurrent assets held for sale and discontinued operations”. In assessing the applicability, management has
exercised judgment to evaluate the availability of the asset for immediate sale, management's commitment for the
sale and probability of sale within one year to conclude if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.

Income Taxes:

Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for current and deferred tax, induding amount
expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.
B~
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POWERGRID HIMACHAL TRANSMISSION LIMITED

(formerly known as Jaypee Powergrid Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements

7

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Other Financial Assets 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
i Fixed Deposit (having maturity over 12 months) 880.84 2,796.92
i Surplus in gratuity defined benefit plan 3.84 -
i Security Deposit 2.91 2.75
Total 887.59 2,799.67
Deferred Tax Asset (Net)
{A) Deferred Tax Liability
Opening Balance 6,431.68 8,860.64
Add:- Current Year Deferred Tax (82.71) 2,428.96
Total for the year 6,514.39 6,431.68
Less:- Deferred Tax Asset- Reversal - -
Deferred Tax Liability (A) 6,514.39 6,431.68
(B) Deferred Tax Asset
Opening Balance MAT Credit 9,653.76 9,467.71
Add :- MAT Credit not recorded earlier now recorded - 21.55
Add - MAT Credit Entitlement/Non Current Tax Assets 937.86 61.77
Provisions 2.51 2.73
Deferred Tax Asset (B) 10,494.13 9,553.76
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) (A-B) 3,979.74 3,122.08
Further Notes:
Movement in Deferred Tax Liabilities Propert)_l il Other Total
and Equipment
As at 01/04/2020 8,860.64 - 8,860.64
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss (2,428.96) - (2,428.96)
As at 31/03/2021 6,431.68 - 6,431.68
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss 82.71 - 82.71
As at 31/03/2022 6,514.39 - 6,514.39
Movement in Deferred Tax Asset MAT Other Total
As at 01/04/2020 9,467.71 3.55 9,471.26
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss 83.32 (0.82) 82.50
As at 31/03/2021 9,551.03 273 9,5653.76
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss 937.86 2.51 940.37
As at 31/03/2022 Total 10,488.89 5.24 10,494.13
Amount taken to Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars - -
Increase/ (Decrease) in Deferred Tax Liabilities 82.71 (2,428.96)
Decrease / (Increase) in Deferred Tax Assets (940.37) (82.50)
Total (857.66) (2,511.46)

(c) In the opinion of the management, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the company in the form of
availability of set off against future income tax liability by recognizing MAT credit as follows:

Future taxable profits will be adjusted against

(a) tax holiday u/s 80-1A of Income Tax Act, 1961 for the commissioned projects
(b) initial depreciation on the assets to be commissioned in future.

Other Non Current Assets
Income Tax Refundable

171.74

(Rs. In Lakhs)

172.24

171.74

172.24

Ih—
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13

Current Assets - Financial Assets

Trade Receivable considered good - Unsecured
- Considered good )

- Having Significant increase in Credit Risk

- Credit Impaired

Less: Loss Allowance

Total
Note

31/03/2022 31/p3/2021
2,989.94 3,344 .57
2,989.94 3,344.57

(i): Trade receivables includes unbifled transmission charges & incentive upto the nionth of March'22 amounting to Rs
1048.06/- lakhs (31st March,2021 Rs 1714.44/- lakhs } to be billed to beneficiaries in subsequent financial year

ii} Trade receivables includes receivables from various DICs through CTU

iii) Refer Note 36 & 37 for disclosure as per Ind AS 115 'Revenue From Contract With Customers and Trade Receivables

ageing schedule

Cash and Cash equivalents:
1. Balance with Banks:

i In Current Account 92.24 33.78
ii In Fixed Deposit (upto 3 months) - -
ii Trust & Retention Account - SBI - 3,741.59
2. Cash on hand - 2.90
Total o 92.24 3,778.27
Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents
in Term Deposits having maturity over 3 months 974.46 -
97448 .
Other Current Financial Assets
Other Receivables 192.78 4.37
Total 19278 4.37.
Other Current Asset
i Consumable Store <. 1.73
i Current Tax Asset (Net) 1,019.31 956.36
i Prepaid Expenses 2714 25.15
Total ~ 1,046.45 983.24
Share Capital -
S - As at 3110312022  As at 31/03/2021
Authorised
300,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 30,000.00 30,000.00
(Previous period 300,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each)
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
300,000,000 (Previous period 300,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully
paid-up. o ~ 30,000.00 30,000.00
~ Total  30,000.00 30,000.00

1) The reconcillation of the number and amount of equity share capital as at 31st March,2022 and 31st March, 2021 Is set

out below: o )
Sl Particulars As at March 31, 2022
No. ) No. of Shares Amount
.. No. of Shares at the beginning of
i) the period 3,000.00 30,000.00
i) Add: Share allotted during the } )
period
... No. of Shares at the end of the
i period B 3,009.0(? 30.000.03
¢ held by the promotors as at March 312022
= = _ = , —
Promoter Name No. of Share
! - — e =
! 1 Powar G@_Corgoralion of India_l.td. B 29,99,99,400
| 2 | sh.M.Taj. Mukamum | 00 |
3 | Sh. Pramod Kumar | 100
[ 4 |Smt Seema Gupta 100
5 | Sh. Abhay Choudha_ry R 100 |
6 | Sh. Ashok Kumar Singhal 100
7 | 8h. Upendra Pande - 100 ]
30,00,00,000 |

"~ Asat March 31, 2021

No.. of Shares
3,000.00

3,000.00

Percentage of

total share

100%

|
*Negligible % beneficial inferest of these shares is held by Power Grid Corporation of India Ltd.

Amount

30,000.00

30,000.00

Percent cFanBe '

| during the year |
NIL

~NIiL |
NIL |

L 4
A0 R Ig_:
A8
= f’(:‘ U Az cOﬁ 7
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(Rs. In Lakhs)

Other Equity 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
General Reserve 4,157.89 4,157.89
Retained Earning 8,068.43 11,339.90
Other Comprehensive Income 3.47 6.82
12,229.79 15,504.61
Borrowings - Non current
Secured term loan from bank 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
State Bank of India - 7,139.26
Punjab National Bank - 3,912.92
Central Bank of India - 2,907.19
The J&K Bank Ltd. - 1,925.41
Unsecured loan from Related Party
Loan from Hodling Company M/s Power Grid Corp. of India Ltd. 11,514.24 -
11,514.24 15,884.78
Less: Current Maturities (refer note no. 17) (4,800.00) (6,413.16)
Total 6,714.24 9,471.62

Term Loan outstanding as on 31/03/2021 has been repaid to all the banks on 01/05/2021 and a Fresh Loan has been
taken from the holding company i.e. POWERGRID.
Loan from Holding Company (POWERGRID) amounting of Rs. 15914.24 Lakh on 30/04/2021. Interest Rate:
@ 5.95% p.a. form 30/04/2021 to 30/09/2021 and from 01/10/2021 Interest rate reset @ 6.65% to 31.03.2022. The loan is
repayable on monthly instaliment of Rs. 400 Lakh each every month -
There has been no default in repayment of loan or payment of interest thereon as at the end of the period

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Other Non Current Liabilites

Provisions 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
Provision for Employees benefits
Provision for Gratuity - 3.38
Provision for Leave Encashment 8.62 6.01
Total 8.62 9.39
Borrowings - Current

Current Maturity - Term Loan/Corporate Loan

From Related Party (refer note of related party) 4,800.00 -
From Banks - 6,413.16
Total 4,800.00 6,413.16
Note: The Company has not availed any secured working capital limit fron Banks/ Financial Institutions.
Trade Payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro & small enterprises* - -
(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro & small enterprises
For Goods and Services 31.46 31.96
(iiiy Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro & small enterprises
For Related Parties 19.98 19.39
Total 51.44 51.34

* Refer note no 38(b) For trade payable aging schedule .
* Disclosure with regard to Micro and Small Enterprises as required under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006 is given in Note 38(a).

Other Financial Liabilities

Expenses Payable 10.67 23.09

Retention Money 6.96 5.97

Payable to Employees 61.99 44.76
Total 79.62 73.82

Other Current Liabilities

Statutory Dues 40.17 5.10

Total 40.17 5.10
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23

24

25

26

27

Provisions .

Current 31/03/2022 3410312021

a) Provision for Eriplovans bench

Provision for Gratuity - 0.80
Provision for Leave Encashment 0.40 0.57

b} Provision for Expenses 8.47 13.23

¢) Provision for Transmission Charges (Intt. & MAT) - 2,401.55
Total 8.87 2,41 @Ji

Current Tax Assetf(Liability) - Net

Provision for Income Tax 903.48 {102 .48)

Less - TDS/Advance Tax 903.48 102,48
Total - i

The Regulatory Deferral Account Balances (Asset)

Opening Balance (3,122.08) 2,772.89

Less:- Net Movement In Deferral assets 857.66 . 5,894.97
Total _ {3,979.74) (3,122.08)

Revenue From Operations

Sales of Services

Transmission Charges 13,365.06 14,774.96
Total ~ 13,365.06 14,774.96

Note: a) In exercise of powers under section 178 of Electricity Act 2003, Central Electricity Regulatory Commission
{CERC) has notified CERC (terms and conditions of tariff) regulations , 2019 vide order dated 07/03/2019, for the
determination of transmission tariff for the block period 2019-24 '
b) Transmission income has been booked according to Final Tariff Order and Truing up order dated 17/10/2021 issued by
CERC for the block period of 2019-24 and 2014-2019 respectively with the adjustment of excess billing in respect of
previous years and upto the date of CERC Order dated 17/10/2021.

¢) Further adjustment in Tariff revenue has been done as per CERC tariff regulation for block period 2019-24 in Gross
Revenue based on final order dated 17.10.2021. Thus reversal of revenue of Rs. 1519.14 Lakh (being difference of
revenue billed as per old tariff order dated 22/05/20219 and booked new tariff order dated 17/10/2021)

d) Recognition of revenue from transmission assets for which final tariff order has been received from CERC vide order
dated 17/10/2021, revenue has been recognised considering cerlain adjustments for which final determination shall be

made upon the truing up order for block period 2019-24.
&) Transmission Tariff of Rs. 3450.46 Lakhs including (Incentive of Rs.33.76 lakhs) for the quarter ended MArch 31, 2022

has been recognised provisionally, based on site verification, as the certificate of availability of Transmission System by
NRPC is pending for Certification and will be adjusted, if necessary in the next Quarter.

1) Transmission income also includes an accrual for services rendered to the customers but not yet billed i.e. Unbilled
Revenue is Rs.998.60 lakhs

g) Refer note no. 36 in respect of accounting effect as considered under IND As 115 ' Revenue from Contract with
Customers'

Other Income

Interest Income 66.76 146.33

Surcharge 191.84 310.36

Income from Recovery of Licence Fee/System Operation Charges 58.74 49.33

Misceltaneous Income * o 0.64 0.52
Total 277.98 506.53

* Miscellaneous income include rebates and discounts

Employee benefits expenses
Salary wages allowances & Benefits 182.70 198.72
Secondment Cost 230.83 11117
Contribution to provident and other funds 6.98 6.65
Staff welfare expenses 254 6.14
Total ) 423, 05 B 322.68
* Refer note no 31 for details of employee benefit abligation o
Finance Cost
Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities at amortised cost
- Indian Banks & Financial institutions 148.78 2,337.88
- Intercorporate deposit from related party 819.22
Interest - Other 271.14 20.75
Interest - Ind-As * 2945 4.18
Total 1,268.59 2,362.82
Note:- i) nterest Other of Rs. 271.14 Lakh has been recognised in respect of excess billing m—-\
242,25 Lakh up to 31/03/2021 and Rs. 28.89 Lakh for FY 2021-22. ; qf_i LN

i) IND As adjustment of Rs. 29.45 Lakh is In respect of unamonised processing fees on term loan availed from banks.
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30

(Rs. In Lakhs)

31/03/2022 31/03/2021
Depreciation and amortization Expense
Depreciation on Fixed Assets 5,288.48 5,289.86
Right to use Asset - 63.04
Total 5,288.48 5,352.90
Note: The company do not have any leashold assets having cancellation period of more than 1 year during the
FY 2021-22
Other expenses
Advertisement & Publicity 0.10 -
Auditor's Remuneration
- For Statutory Audit 5.90 5.90
- For Tax Audit 1.18 1.18
- For Certifications/Others 0.77 447
Bank Charges 1.04 0.56
Books and Periodicals - 0.07
Communication Expenses 1.34 1.48
Cost Audit Fee/Others 0.59 0.59
Concurrent Audit Fee : - 0.94
Corporate Social Responsibility 130.77 118.00
Charity and Donation - 122.00
Directors' Sitting Fee - 12.51
Insurance Charges 148.95 151.76
Internal Audit Fee - 0.27 2.36
Legal and Professional Expenses 711 34.27
Transmission License Fee 17.75 17.75
Miscellaneous Expenses 62.86 65.09
Printing & Stationery Expenses 1.36 0.64
Reactors Maintenance Cost 70.91 64.47
Rent, Rates & Taxes 20.29 10.75
Secretarial Audit Fee 0.47 0.60
Sub-Station Maintenance Cost 81.30 78.54
System Operation/NLRDC Charges Paid 23.26 13.83
Traveliing & Conveyance Expenses 8.35 8.19
Tariff Determination Fee 17.75 17.75
Vehicle Running & Maintenance Expenses 27.87 22.29
Transmission Line Work - 1.12
_Total 630.20 757.11

Net Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balance-incomes/(expenses) (Net of tax)

As at 31st March  As at 31st March

Particulars 2022 2021
Deferred assets for Deferred tax liability (857.66) (5,894.97)
Employee Benefits Expenses -

{857.66) (5,894.97)
Tax on Net movement in regulatory deferred account balance (149.85) (983.99)
Total (707.81) (4,910.98)

Disclosures relating to Reguiatory Deferral Account Balances Nature of rate regulated activities

i) The company is mainly engaged in the business of transmission of power. The tariff for transmission of power is
determined by the CERC through tariff regulations. The tariff is based on capitai cost admitied by CERC and provides for
transmission charges recovery of annual fixed cost consisting of Return on equity, Interest on loan capital, Depreciation,
interest on working capital and Operation & Maintenance expenses.
i) Risk associated with future recovery/ reversal of regulatory deferral account balances

(a) regulatory risk on account of changes in regulations.

(b) other risks including currency or other market risks, if any.

Any change in the Tariff regulations beyond the current tariff period ending on 31.03.2024 may have an impact on the
recovery of Regulatory Deferral Account Balances.

The Regulatory Deferral Account Balances (assets) recognized in the books to be recovered from the beneficiaries
in future periods are as follows:

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31/03/2022  As at 31/03/2021
A. Opening Balance (3,122.08) 2,773
B. Addition/(deduction) during the year (4,241.18) (5,895)
C. Amount collected/refunded during the year - -
D. Regulated Income/(Expense) recognized in the
statement of Profit and Loss (4,241.18) (5,894.97)
E. Closing Balance (7,362.25) (3,122.08)
F. Tax on Regulated Income/(Expensg§ 149.85 0832 .99

the statement of Profit and Loss

W—



31 Employees Benefit Obligations (Rupee in Lakh)

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
o Current R Total Current - e Total
Current Current
Leave Obligations 0.40 - 8.62 9.02 0.57 6.01 6.58
Gratuity 0.36 18.73 19.09 0.80 13.55 14.35
Total employee benefit obligations 0.75 27.36 28.11 1.37 19.56 20.93

(i) Long Term Employee Benefits

(A) Leave Obligations
The Company provides for earned leave benefit (including compensated absences) to the employees of the company

which accrue annually at 30 days. Earned leave is encashable on separation from service. Leaves are en-cashable on
separation upto the maximum of 120 days. The liability for same is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

(B) Gratuity
The company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has rendered continuous service of five years or
more is entitied to get gratuity at 15 days salary (15/26 x last drawn basic salary plus, deamness allowance) for each
completed year of service on superannuation, resignation, termination, disablement or on death subject to @ maximum of T
20 lacs. The scheme is funded by the company and is managed by a separate trust. The liability for the same is recognized
on the basis of actuarial valuation on annual basis on the Balance Sheet date.

(C) Provident Fund
Company pays fixed contribution to Provident Fund. Contribution to family pension scheme is paid to the appropriate
authorities. The contribution to the fund and EPS scheme for the year amounting to ¥ 6.98 Lakh (previous year % 6.65
Lakh) has been recognized as expense and is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

(D) Principal Actuarial assumptions
Principal actuarial assumption used to determine the present value of the benefit obligation are as follows:

Sl. Particulars Refer note As at As at
No. below 31/03/2022  31/03/2021
I Discounting Rate 1 7.15% 6.69%
I} Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 2 6.50% 4.00%
Il Estimate of amount coniribution in the immediate next year Rs./Lacs - 212
Notes

1 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of the Indian Government securities as at the

balance sheet date for the estimated term of obligation.
2 The estimates of future salary increase consider takes into a account the inflation, seniority, promotion and

other relevant factors.
(E) The following tables set out the funded status of the plans and amount recognised in the financial

statements.
sl 2021-22 2020-21
No.. Particulars Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave
(Funded) | Encashment | (Funded) | Encashment

a)| Change in benefit obligations: .
1| Present value of the obligation at the beginning of the year 14.35 6.58 15.75 6.80
2| Current Service Cost 1.91 1.16 1.51 0.79
3| Interest Cost 1.00 0.46 1.07 0.46
4| Actuarial Gain/Loss on obligation 2.89 1.14 1.35 (1.42)
5| Benefits paid (1.06) (0.32) (5.33) (0.05)
6| Present value of the obligation at the end the year 19.09 9.02 14.35 6.58




b)| Change in Plan Assets during the Period ended 31st
March, 2022
1|Fair value of the Plan Assets at the beginning of the year. 10.17 - 9.53 s
2|Actual Return on Plan Assets. - 0.68 - 0.64 -
3|Contribution by Employer. 13.13 - 5.33 -
4|Actual Benefit Paid. (1.06) - (5.33) -
5|Fair value of the Plan Assets at the end of the year. 22.92 - 10.17 -
c)|Net Liability/(Surplus)(1-ll)
1|Present value of defined benefit obligation 19.09 9.02 14.35 6.58
2|Fair value of Plan Assets 22.92 - 10.17 o
Net Liability/(Surplus) (I-l) (3.83) 9.02 4.18 6.58
d)|Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
1|Current Service Cost 1.91 1.16 1,50,971 78,844
2|Net interest cost 1.00 0.46 42 279 46,261
Total 2.91 1.62 1,93,250 1,25,105
e)|Expenses recongnised in Other Comprehensive Income
R i March 31, March 31,
Actuarial Gain/Loss 2022 2021
Net actuarial gain/(loss) recognized in the period
Leave Encashment (1.14) 1.42
Gratuity (2.92) (1.35)
Net gain/(loss) for the period (4.06) 0.07
Less Deferred Tax Asset/Liability (0.71) 0.01
Add Deferred Assets (0.71) 0.01
Net Charge/(Credit) (3.35) - 0.06
Demographic assumptions:
1| Retirement age 60 Years 60 Years
2| Mortality rate (% of IALM 12-14) 100% 100%
3| Average Outstanding service of Employees up to retirement 15.43 15.43
4{No. of Employees 25 26
f)|Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation as on 31st March 2022
Impact of the change in Gratuity (Funded) Leave Encashment
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
1|Discount Rate (0.50% movement) (1.02) 1.10 (0.49) 0.52
2| Salary Excalation Rate (0.50% movement) 1.10 {1.02) 0.52 - 0.49
Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change due to these not calculated.
Sensitivities as rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy
are not applicable.
. . . " . Gratuity Leave
g)| Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation as on 31st March,2022 (Funded) | Encashment
1 0to 1 Year 0.35 0.40
2 1to 2 Year 0.34 | 0.16
3 2to 3 Year 0.33 0.16
4 3to 4 Year 2.49 0.80
5 4to 5 Year 0.64 0.64
6 5to 6 Year 1.57 0.79
7 6 Year onwards 13.36 6.08

L




32 Earnings per share

(a) Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the As at As at
equity holder of the Company 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Including movement in Regulatory deferral balances 1.71 1.00
Excluding movement in Regulatory deferral balances 1.95 2.64
Total basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to 1.71 1.00
the equity holder of the Company ' ]

(b) Reconciliation of earnings used as numerator in As at As at
calculating 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Earnings attributable to the equity holders of the company
including movement in Regulatory deferral balances 5,636.34 7.910.99
Earnings attributable to the equity holders of the company
excluding movement in Regulatory deferral balances 512853 3,000.00
Total Earnings attributable to the equity holders of the 5.128.53 3,000.00
company

(c) Reconciliation of Equity Shares used as numerator in As at As at
calculating 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the
denominator in calculating basic earnings per share 3,000 3,000
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share - -
Total weighted average number of equity shares used as
the denominator in calculating basic earnings per share 3,000 3,000
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34

Disclosures relating to Requlatory Deferral Account Balances

The company is mainly engaged in the business of transmission of power. The tariff for transmission of power is determined by
the CERC through tariff regulations. The tariff is based on capital cost admitted by CERC and provides for transmission charges
recovery of annual fixed cost consisting of Return on equity, Interest on loan capital, Depreciation, interest on working capital and
Operation & Maintenance expenses.

The Regulatory Deferral Account Balances (assets) recognized in the books to be recovered from the beneficiaries in future
periods are as follows :

Sl. . As at As at
No, Farticulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
A Opening Balance (3,122.08) 2,772.89
B Addition/(deduction) during the year 857.66 5,894.97
C Amount collected/refunded during the year - .
D Regulated Income/(Expense) - -
E Closing Balance (3,979.74) (3,122.08)

Income Tax expense
This note provides an analysis of the company’s income tax expense, and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable

and non deductible items. It also explains significant estimates made in relation to the Company’s tax position.

(a) Income tax Expense
: As at As at
SartEiaE 31st March 2022 34st March 2021
Current Tax
Current tax on profits for the year 1,054.04 1,086.45
Pertaining to regulatory deferral account balances (A) {149.85) (983.99)
Total current tax expense (B) 904.19 102.47
Deferred Tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (857.66) (2,511.46)
Total deferred tax expense /benefit (C) (857.66) (2,511.46)
Income tax expense (B+C-A) 196.37 (1,425.00)
Pertaining to reguiatory deferral account balances (149.85) (983.99)
Total tax expense including tax on movement in 46.52 (2,408.99)
regulatory deferral account balances
(b) Income Tax recognized in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances:
. As at As at
it 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Deferred assets for Deferred tax liability (857.66) (5,894.97)
Foreign Currency Fluctuation - -
Employee Benefits Expenses - -
Total Regulatory Deferral Account Balances Before Tax - Income
,(Expensis) 2 (857.66) (5,894.97)
Current Tax on Regulatory Deferral Account Balances (149.85) (983.99)
Net Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances - (707.81) (4,910.98)
Income/ (Expenses) (net of Tax)
(c) Income Tax recognized in other comprehensive income:
_— As at As at
earticuiars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Net acturial losses on defined benefit plans
Before Tax (4.06) 0.07
Tax Expenses (0.71) 0.01
Net of Tax (3.35) 0.06




(d) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate:

i As at As at
Particul

i 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Profit before income tax expense including movement in 5.175.06 591.01
regulatory
Tax at the Company's domestic tax rate of 26% 1,345.52 164.42
Tax effect of:
Non Deductible tax items 485.22 376.07
Tax exempt income . (1,830.74) (540.48)
Deferred Assets for Deferred Tax Liability
Unabsorbed tax losses
Deferred Tax expense/(income) (857.66) (2,511.46)
Minimum alternate tax adjustments 904.19 102.47
Income tax expense 46.52 (2,408.99)

i



35 Disclosure as per Ind AS 24 - "Related Party Disclosures”

S

Place of business / Proportul):t::e(:rmershlp
SI. No. Name of enti Country of
ty incorpogtion As on 31st | Ason 31st
March 2022 | March 2021
(a) Holding Company
1 Powergrid Corporation of India Limited India 100% 100%
(b) Subsidiary of Holding Company
1 POWERGR!D Vemagiri Transmission Limited India NA NA
2 |POWERGRID NM Transmission Limited India NA NA
3 |POWERGRID Unchahar Transmission Limited India NA NA
4 |POWERGRID Medinipur Jeerat Transmission Limited India NA NA
5 |POWERGRID Mithilanchal Transmission Limited India NA
6 |POWERGRID Varanasi Transmission System Limited India NA NA
POWERGRID Jawaharpur Firozabad Transmission
7  |Limited (Erstwhile Jawaharpur Firozabad Transmission India NA NA
Limited)
POWERGRID Khetri Transmission System Limited ;
) (Erstwhile Khetri Transco Limited) India NA e
9 POWERQRI_D Bh'u1 .Transmlssmn Limited (Erstwhile Bhuj- India NA NA
I} Transmission Limited)
POWERGRID Bhind Guna Transmission Limited .
10 | Erstwhile Bhind Guna Transmission Limited) India NA NA
POWERGRID Ajmer Phagi Transmission Limited .
" | (Erstwhile Ajmer Phagi Transco Limited) e e el
12 POWERGRID Fatehga_rh _Transmnssnon Limited (Erstwhile India NA NA
Fatehgarh-l Transco Limited)
POWERGRID Rampur Sambhal Transmission Limited .
13 |(Erstwhile Rampur Sambhal Transco Limited) india NA NA
POWERGRID Meerut Simbhavali Transmission Limited .
14| (Erstwhile Meerut-Simbhavali Transmission Limited) dia NA NA
15 |Central Transmission Utility of india Limited India NA NA
16 POWERGRID Ramgar.h Trans.mi_ssion Limited (Erstwhile India NA NA
Ramgarh New Transmission Limited)
17 P_O\(VERGRID Southern Interconnecctor Transmission India NA NA
Limited
POWERGRID Bikaner Transmission System Limited .
18 | (Erstwhile Bikaner-Ii Bhiwadi Transco Limited) India NA NA
- — — = -
19 PF)WERGRID S|k§r 'I"rans_m|.55|or11 Limited (Erstwhile India NA NA
Sikar New Transmission Limited)
=== — hi
20 POWERGRID Bhadla Transr_mgsnon1 Limited (Erstwhile India NA NA
Fatehgarh Bhadla Transco Limited)
POWERGRID Aligarh Sikar Transmission Limited .
21 ind NA NA
(Erstwhile Sikar Il Aligarh Transmission Limited)? noe
22 |POWERGRID Teleservices Limited® India NA NA
23 |POWERGRID Energy Services Limited* India NA NA
'100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited (erstwhile
REC Power Distribution Company Limited) on 04.06.2021
2100% equity acquired by POWERGRID from PF ited on 08.06.2021
® Incorporated on 25.11.2021 <
*Incorporated on 14.03.2022 »

60’3 * Q

W




(c) Joint Ventures of Holding Company

1 Powerlinks Transmission Limited India NA NA

2 |Torrent Power Grid Limited India NA NA

3 |Parbati Koldam Transmission Company Limited India NA NA

4 |Teestavalley Power Transmission Limited India NA NA

5 |North East Transmission Company Limited India NA NA

g |National High Power Test Laboratory Private Limited India NA NA

7 |Bihar Grid Company Limited India NA NA

8 Energy Efficiency Services Limited' India NA NA

9 |Cross Border Power Transmission Company Limited India NA NA

10 |RINL POWERGRID TLT Private Limited® india NA NA

11 |Power Transmission Company Nepal Limited Nepal NA NA
T POWERGRID has invested  407.49 crore during year in Energy Efficiency Services Limited (EESL), thereby
increasing its shareholding from 5.71% to 33.33%. EESL has been considered as Joint Venture w.ef.
01.09.2021 being the Joint control has been reinstated vide Agreement dated 01.09.2021.
2 pOWERGRID's Board of Directors in its meeting held on 01.05.2018 accorded in principle approval to close
RINL POWERGRID TLT Private Limited (RPTPL) and seek consent of other JV Partner Rashtriya Ispat Nigam
Limited (RINL). RINL's Board of Directors in its meeting held on 08.03.2019 has agreed in principle for winding
up proceedings of RPTPL & to seek the approval from Ministry of Steel, Government of India, for closure of
RPTPL. RINL's Board of Directors in its meeting held on 05.11.2019 has advised to put up the closure proposal
again to Ministry of steel for onward submission to NITI Ayog. The Ministry of Steel vide letter dated 29.09.2020
informed RINL that closure of RPTPL is being examined and seeks further clarifications from RINL. Accordingly,
relevant information was forwarded by RINL to The Ministry of Steel. The Approval from Government is still
awaited.

(d) Associates of Holding Company

1 POWERGRID Kala Amb Transmission Limited’ India NA NA

2 |POWERGRID Jabalpur Transmission Limited" India NA NA

3 |POWERGRID Vizag Transmission Limited’ India ' NA NA

4 |POWERGRID Warora Transmission Limited' India NA NA

5 |POWERGRID Parli Transmission Limited’ India NA NA
T Associates of Holding Company w.e.f. 13.05.2021 (Wholly owned Subsidiaries of Holding Company till
12.05.2021); POWERGRID has transferred its remaining 26% stake in POWERGRID Vizag Transmission
Limited (PVTL) on 31.03.2022, hence PVTL has ceased to be the Associate of Holding Company w.e.f.
31.03.2022

(e) | Key Management Personnel

1 Shri Rajiv Kumar, Whole-time Director & CEO

2 Shri K. Sreekant

3 Shri T.C. Sarmah, Director (tili 18.01.2022)

4 Shri Pramod Kumar, Director

5 Smt. Manju Gupta, Director (w.e.f. 11.08.2021)

6 Shri Yugesh Kumar Dixit, Director (w.e.f. 07.02.2022)

7 Shri B. Das, Chief Financial Officer

8 Shri Rajeev Kumar, Company Secretary

9 Shri Vinod Kumar Singh (KMP of POWERGRID)




10 | Shri Abhay Choudhary (KMP of POWERGRID)

11 Smt. Seema Gupta (KMP of POWERGRID)

12 | Shri M Taj Mukarrum (KMP of POWERGRID)

13 | Shri Dilip Nigam (KMP of POWERGRID)

14 | Shri M N Venkatesan (KMP of POWERGRID)

15 | Shri Ram Naresh (KMP of POWERGRID) (w.e.f. 18.11.2021)

16 | Shri Chetan Bansilal Kankariya (KMP of POWERGRID) (w.e.f. 17.11.2021)
17 | Shri K N Onkarappa (KMP of POWERGRID) (w.e.f. 17.11.2021)

18 | Shri Ghanshyam Prasad (KMP of POWERGRID) (w.e.f. 21.12.2021)

(f) Government Related Entities

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Central Public Sector Undertaking (CPSU) controlled by Central
Government by holding majority of shares.

The Company has business transactions with other entities controlled by the GOI for procurement of capital
equipment, spares and services. Transactions with these entities are carried out at market terms on arms-
length basis through a transparent price discovery process against open tenders, except in a few cases of
procurement of spares/services from Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) for proprietary items/or on single
tender basis due to urgency, compatibility or other reasons. Such single tender procurements are also done
through a process of negotiation with prices benchmarked against available price data of same/similar items.

The above transactions are in the course of normal day-to-day business operations. Such entities with which
the Company has significant transactions include but not limited to POSOCO (RLDC fees for an amount of ¥
23.26 lakhs).




Disclosure as per Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

(Rs. In Lakhs)

(g) Balances outstanding as at the period ended 31st March 2022

Central Transmission

POWERGRID Utility of India Ltd. Key Management
S. No. Nature of Transaction (Holding Compnay) (Fellow Subsidiary Personnel
Company)
31-03-2022 | 31-03-2021 | 31-03-2022 | 31-03-2021 | 31-03-2022 | 31 -03-2021

1 Loan from POWERGRID 11,514.24 - - - - -

2 Managerial Remuneration - - - - 50.43 28.64
3 Operation and maintenance (including GST) 19.98 19.64 - - - =

4 Reimbursement of Deputation Cost 57.69 22.90 - - - -

5 Transactions in c;apacity of CTU (Recevable) - - 2,989.94 - - -

{h) Transaction with Related parties

6 Dividend 8,400.00 195.00 - - - -

7 Bay Maintenance at Abdullapur S/s 81.30 78.54 - - - -

8 Managerial Remuneration - - - - 213.09 111.17
9 Loan Received 15,914.24 - - - - -
10 Loan Repayment 4,400.00 - - - - -
11 Interest Payment - 819.22 - - - - -
12 Reimbursement of Deputation Cost 230.83 111.17 - - - -
13 Transactions in capacity of CTU - - 13,516.90 - - -




6. Disclosure as per Ind AS 115 - “Revenue from Contracts with Customer”

a) The movement in unbilled revenue during the year is as follows:

(% in lakh)

; For the year ended For the year ended
Pariculars %31.03.2022 %31.03.2021
Balance at the beginning 1,714.45 1,370.39
Add: Revenue recognised during the period 1,048.06 1,714.45
Less: Invoiced during the period 1,714.45 1,370.39
Less: Impairment/reversal during the period - -
Add: Translation gain/(Loss) - -
Balance at the end 1,048.06 1,714.45

b) The entity determines transaction price based on expected value method considering its past experiences of
refunds or significant reversals in amount of revenue. In estimating significant financing component,
management considers the financing element inbuilt in the transaction price based on imputed rate of return.
Reconciliation of Contracted Price vis-a-vis revenue recognized in profit or loss statement is as follows:

(% in lakh)

. For the year ended For the year ended
e 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Contracted Price 13,840.86 16,136.06
Add/ (Less)- Discounts/ rebates provided to customer (67.69) (48.22)
Add/ (Less)- Performance bonus 158.22 182.98
Add/ (Less)- Adjustment for significant financing component
(50% Interest Benefit) (289.80) -
Add/ (Less)- Other adjustments (276.53) (1495.86) |
Revenue recognised in profit or loss statement 13,365.06 14,774.96

37. Aging of Trade Receivables is as follows: (% in lakh)

Particulars Unbilled 0-6M 6M-1Y | 1Y-2Y | 2Y-3Y | >3Y Total |
As at
31.03.2022

Disputed - - - - - - -
Considered —
Good

Undisputed 1,048.06 | 1,140.39 | 295.18 | 237.54 1.10 | 267.67 | 2,989.94
Significant Disputed - - - - - - -
increase in ) ) )
Credit Risk Undisputed ) j ) )

. . Disputed - - - - - - -
Credit Impaired Undisputed . . . = = - -
As at
31.03.2021
Considered — Disfjuted - — - = - = -
Soe0 Undisputed 1,714.44 | 1,136.18 | 134.42 65.57 | 92.33 | 201.63 | 3,344.57
Significant Disputed - - - - - - -
increase in ) ) ) )
Credit Risk Undisputed } ) B

. . Disputed - - - - - - -
Credit Impaired Undisputed . - = - . a :




38. a) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Based on information available with the company, there are no suppliers/service providers who are registered as
micro, small or medium enterprise under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(MSMED Act, 2008). Information in respect of micro and small enterprises as required by Companies Act 2013
and MSMED Act, 2006 is given as under:

Z in lakh)

Sr. No | Particulars Trade Payables Others
As at As at As at As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

1 Principal amount and
interest due thereon
remaining unpaid to any
supplier as at end of each
accounting year:

Principal Nil Nil Nil Nil
Interest Nil Nil Nil Nil
2 The amount of Interest paid

by the buyer in terms of
section 16 of the MSMED
Act, 2006 along with the . . . .
amount of the payment Nil Nl i I
made to the supplier beyond
the appointed day during
each accounting year

3 The amount of interest due
and payable for the period of
delay in making payment
(which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day Nii Nil Nil Nil
during the year) but without
adding the

interest specified under
MSMED Act, 2006

4 The amount of interest
accrued and

remaining unpaid at the end Nil Nil Nil Nil
of each

accounting year

5 The amount of further
interest remaining due and
payable even in the
succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to Nil Nil Nil Nil
the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as
a deductible expenditure
under section 23 of

the MSMED Act 2006




b) Trade payables

Aging of Trade Payables is as follows:
(% in lakh

Total

Particulars Not Billed | <1Y 1Y-2Y 2Y-3Y >3Y
As at 31.03.2022
MSME

Disputed -
Undisputed ' - - - - -
Total - - - - - -
Others
Disputed 5
| Undisputed a
Total

As at 31.03.2021
MSME

Disputed - - - - -
Undisputed - - B - - -
Total - 5 - - - -
Others
Disputed -
Undisputed -
Total -

51.44
51.44

51.44 - - -
51.44 - 5 5

- 51.34
51.34

51.34
51.34 - - :

39. Disclosure as per Ind AS 116 - "Leases”

The company had entered into the lease deed in respect four properties during the current financial year and the
management of the company has determine that the non-cancellable for which the contract was enforceable was
not more than 1 year. Further both the lessor and lessee had the right to terminated the lease without the
permission from the other party with no more than an insignificant penalty. Considering the terms of lease, the
accounting standard 116 is not made applicable in respect of aforesaid lease deed.

Further that the company had entered into the lease agreement with Jaiprakash Associates Ltd. For property at
JA Annex, 54, Basant Lok, Vasant Vihar, New Delhi having area of -2000 sq.mt. vide lease agreement dated
10™ June 2019 for the period of 3 years starting from 1t April 2018 to 31%t March 2021. Upon completion of lease
term as on 31% March 2021 the company has extended the lease agreement for further period of 2 months upto
31st May 2021.

Since the extension of lease term was not decided on last reporting period that is 31t March 2021, the lease
accounting pursuant to Ind AS 116 have been discontinued and all the corresponding rights of use of assets and
lease liabilities were unwind on 315t March 2021. As per management, the extension was for temporary period of
2 months and hence all the lease payment for 2 months have been directly expensed to Profit & Loss Alc i.e.
Rs. 10 lacs plus taxes.

40. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenses

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 read with DPE guidelines no F.No.15 (13)/2013-DPE (GM), the Company is required to spend, in
every financial year, at least two per cent of the average net profits of the Company made during the three
immediately preceding financial years in accordance with its CSR Policy. The details of CSR expenses for the
year are as under: -

(% in lakh)
Sl. For the year For the year
No PARTICULARS ended ended
) . 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
A Gross Amount required to be spent during the year 130.73 118.00
B Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 130.73 118.00
C Amount spent on CSR ~
(i) | Construction or acquisition of any asset m\\ - -
(ii) | on Purpose other than (i) above — PM_@ABESRENDY 130.73 -
D Total Shortfall/(Excess) amount - -

w_



E Break-up of the amount spent on CSR

Education and Skill Development expenses

114.50

Ecology and Environment Expenses

Health and Sanitation expenses

Sports, Art and Culture expenses

N[ WIN| -

Protection of national heritage, art and cuiture including
restoration of building and sites of historical importance

D

Other CSR activities

Total Amount spent on CSR

130.73

114.50

Amount spent in Cash out of above

130.73

114.50

Amount yet to be spent in Cash

3.50

* During the year the Company has deposited 3.53 Lakhs in Prime

of CSR expenditure for the year ended 31.03.2021.

41. Fair Value Measurement

Minister Relief Fund against unspent amount

@ in lakh)

Particulars

31-03-2022

Carrying
Value

Classification

Fair Value

FVTPL

FVTOCI

Amortised
Cost

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Financial
Assets

Trade
Receivables

2,989.94

2,989.94

_ Cash & cash
Equivalents

92.24

92.24

Bank Balances
other than cash
and cash
equivalents

974.46

974.46

| Current

192.78

192.78

Non-Current

887.59

887.59

Total
Financial
assets

5,137.02

5,137.02

Financial
Liabilities

Borrowings
(incl.  current
maturity of long
term
borrowings)

11,514.24

11,514.24

Trade
Payables

51.44

51.44

Current

79.62

79.62

Non-Current

Total financial
liabilities

11,645.30




(Z in lakh)

Particulars

31-03-2021

Carrying
Value

Classification

Fair Value

FVTPL

FVTOCI

Amortised
Cost

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Financial
Assets

Trade
Receivables

3,344.57

3,344.57

Cash & cash
Equivalents

3,778.27

3,778.27

Bank Balances
other than cash
and cash
equivalents

Current

4.37

4.37

Non-Current

2,799.67

2,799.67

Total
Financial
assets

9,926.88

9,926.88

Financial
Liabilities

Borrowings
(incl.  current
maturity of long
term
borrowings)

16,884.78

15,884.78

Trade
Payables

51.34

51.34

Current

73.82

73.82

Non-Current

Total financial
liabilities

16,009.94

16,009.94

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are measured at fair value and financial instruments that are measured at amortised cost and
for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the
inputs used in determining fair value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, Bank Balance, cash and cash equivalents, other

current financial assets and other current financial liabilitips

due to their short-term nature.

For financial assets that are measured at fair value, thgs

sre=sansidered to be the same as their fair values,

unis are equal to the fair values.
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Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed
equity bonds which are traded in the stock exchanges, valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds)
is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included
in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification assets
included in level 3.

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year. The company’s policy is to recognise transfers
into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

Valuation technique used to determine fair value:

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments includes:

«the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

«the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

All of the resulting fair value estimates are included in level 2.

42. Seament Information

The Board of Directors is the company's Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) who monitors the operating
results of its business segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. One reportable segment has been identified on the basis of product/services. The
company has a single reportable segment i.e., Power transmission network for transmission system.

The operations of the company are mainly carried out within the country and therefore there is no reportable
geographical segment.

43. Cohtinqent Liabilities, Contingent assets and Commitments

(% in lakh)
Particulars As at 31%t March 2022 As at 31t March
2021
A. Contingent Liabilities:
Claim against the Company not
acknowledged as debts
- Claim against the Company not
acknowledged as debt - -
- Demand raised by the authorities against
which, Company has filed appeals:
(i) Income Tax Demand#
- Income Tax matters 205.59 71.91
- Land/ Tree/Crop compensation cases® 348.51 360.53

*In respect of land acquired for the projects, land losers have claimed higher compensation before various
authorities/courts which are yet to be settled. Notional Interest on Land Claims is not included in the above
amount.

# The income tax demand as shown above are excludjf ..
actual liability of the same would depend upon the outfs '



B. Contingent Assets

The Company has filed Petitions with CERC for compensatory relief due to Change in Law and Force Majure
events in the form of Increase in Transmission Charges. Based on past orders and events, the Company believes
that a favourable outcome is probable. However, it is impracticable to estimate the financial effect of the same as
its receipt is dependent on the outcome of the judgement.

C. Commitments
Particulars As at 315t March 2022 | As at 315t March 2021

Other Commitments -

44. Capital management

a) Risk Management
The company'’s objectives when managing capital are to

e maximize the shareholder value;
o safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern,
o maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

For the purpose of the company’s capital management, equity capital includes issued equity capital and all other:
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. of the company. The company manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, regulate investments in its projects, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The company monitors capital using debt-equity ratio, which is the ratio of
long-term debt to total net worth. The company includes within long term debt, interest bearing loans and
borrowings and current maturities of long-term debt.

The debt — equity ratio of the Company was as follows: -

(% in lakh)
Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As.at 31.03.2021 |
Debt including current maturity™ 11,514.24 15,884.78
Equity including reserve & surplus (excluding revaluation
reserve)** . 42,229.78 45,504.61
Long term debt to Equity ratio 0.27 0.35

*Debt is defined as long term and short term borrowings inciuding current maturities and books overdraft.

** Total equity (as shown in the balance sheet) includes issued capital and ali other equity reserves.

b) Dividends (Z in lakh)
Particular As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
Final Dividend for FY 2019-20 @ 0.25 Paise per share - 750.00
interim Dividend for FY 2020-21 @ Rs. 2.00 per share 6,000.00 -
Interim Dividend for FY 2021-22 1%t @ 0.40 Paise per share 1,200.00 -
Interim Dividend for FY 2021-22 2™ @ 0.40 Paise per share 1,200.C0 -

o~




45, Financial Risk Management

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings denominated in Indian rupees, trade
payables and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s capital
investments and operations.

The Company'’s principal financial assets include loans and advances, trade and other receivables, and cash and
cash equivalents that are generated from its operations.

The Company’s activities expose it to the following financial risks, namely,
(A) Credit risk,
(B) Liquidity risk,
(C) Market risk.

This note presents information regarding the company’s exposure, objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing these risks.

The management of financial risks by the Company is summarized below: -

(A) Credit Risk:
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities on account
of trade receivables.

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 3 years of when
they fall due. This definition of default is determined considering the business environment in which the Company
operates and other macro-economic factors.

‘Assets are written-off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring bankruptcy
or failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off,
the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where such
recoveries are made, these are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(i) Trade Receivables and Unbilled Revenue

The Company primarily provides transmission facilities to inter-state transmission service customers (DICs)
comprising mainly state utilities owned by State Governments and the main revenue is from transmission charges.
CERC (Sharing of Inter-State Transmission Charges and Losses) Regulations, 2020 (“CERC Sharing
Regulations”) allow payment against monthly bills towards transmission charges within due date i.e., 45 days
from the date of presentation of the bill and levy of surcharge on delayed payment beyond 45 days. However, in
order to improve the cash flows of company, a graded rebate is provided for payments made within due date.

Trade receivables consist of receivables relating to transmission services of ¥ 2,989.94 Lakhs as on 31st March,
2022 (Z 3,344.57 Lakhs as on 31st March, 2021). ‘

The trade receivable of Rs. 893.82 Lakh is overdue for more than 6 months and as per management confirmation
the same is recoverable within a year. Hence the provision for ECL has not been made.

Unbilled revenue primarily relates to the Company’s right to consideration for services provided but not billed at
the reporting date and has substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same type

of contracts.




(ii) Other Financial Assets (excluding trade receivables and unbilied revenue)

e Cash and cash equivalents

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of % 92.24 lakh (Previous Year ¥ 3,778.27 lakh). The cash and
cash equivalents are held with public sector banks and high rated private sector banks and do not have any

significant credit risk.

« Deposits with banks and financial institutions

The Company held deposits with banks and financial institutions of ¥ 880.84 lakh (Previous Year ¥2799.68
lakh) having maturity of more than 12 months and  974.46 lakh (Previous Year Nil) having maturity of more

than 3 and less than 12 months. Term deposits are placed with public sector banks an

risk.

(B)Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. The Company
has entered into Inter-Corporate Loan Agreement for Funding of its obligations. For this, Company provided

(©)

quarterly cashflows in advance to Holding Company with Monthly requirement.

d have negligible credit

The Company depends on both internal and external sources of liquidity to provide working capital and to fund

capital expenditure.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their

contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities.

The amount disciosed in the table is the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

(% in lakh)
I(_':on_t!'gctual maturities of financial Within a year Between 1-56 Beyond 5 Total
iabilities years years
As at 31.03.2022
Borrowings
| (including interest outflows) 4,800.00 6,714.24 11,514.24
Trade payables 51.44 - 51.44
Other financial liabilities
Others 79.62 - 79.62
| Total 4,931.06 6,714.24 11,645.30 |
As at 31.03.2021
Borrowings
_(including interest outflows) 6,413.16 9,501.08 15,914.24
Trade payables 51.34 - 51.34
Other financial liabilities
| Others 73.82 - 73.82
Total 6,538.32 9,501.08 16,039.40
MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:

(i) Currency risk
(ii) Interest rate risk

(iii) Other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk.

o



(i) Currency risk

(i)

a)

b)

c)

d)

As on Reporting date the Company does not have any exposure to currency risk in respect of foreign currency
denominated loans and borrowings and procurement of goods and services whose purchase consideration

foreign currency.

Interest rate risk

The company has taken borrowings from Parent Company on cost to cost basis. The Company is exposed to
interest rate risk because the cash flows associated with floating rate borrowings. The various sources of loans
being extended to the company by parent company are Fixed interest and floating interest rate which get reset
periodically. The Company manages the interest rate risks by maintaining a debt portfolio of fixed and floating
rate borrowings. The Company's interest rate risk is not considered significant, hence sensitivity analysis for the
risk is not disclosed.

46. Additional Requlatory Information as per Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013

The company own free hold land and the same is still appearing in the name of Jaypee Powergrid Limited (JPL).
The Company JPL was acquired by POWERGRID by virtue of acquisition of shares and become the wholly
subsidiary of POWERGRID: Post-acquisition of Company, the name of the JPL was changed to Powergrid
Himachal Transmission Limited (PHTL), however the name on the title deed remain the same i.e. JPL.

The company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender during
the financial year.

The Company does not have any transactions, balances or relationship with Struck off companies.

There is no charge on the company assets which are required to be registered or to be satisfied as on the reporting
date.

The company does not have any subsidiary or other downstream and hence the layers prescribed under clause
(87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not

applicable. bj/




f) Ratio: .

Current Previous
Year Year
Ratio Numerator Denominator Va}rla;nce Reason for Variance >25%
. Ratio in %
Ratio
(a) Current Ratio Current Assets St
Liabilities 1.06 0.91 17.47
) Debt-Equity Shareholder’s
B0 rotal Debt Eaquity 0.27 035|  -21.89
Interest on Loan rate has
been reduced from
Profit for the | 10.75%/PA to 6.75%/PA by
period + Interest & Lease .
: } ey swiping Term Loan to Inter-
(c) Debt Service Depreciation and Payments +
C . o o Corporate Loan on
overage Ratio amortization Principal 2.07 1.22 69.66
. - 30.04.2021 and gradually
expense + Finance | Repayments . .
reducing Loan Principle
costs :
amount due to repayment of
Loan
In the last FY-2020-21,
(d) Return on Profit for the Aver;gt;d , P:T ha§ been reduced ffiue to
Equity Ratio period Sharehplderss 11.68% 6.76% 72.83 | change in movement o
, Equity 0070 ’ ' regulatory deferral account
and deferred tax.
(e) Inventory Revenue from Average .
turnover ratio Operations Inventory Not Applicable
Average Trade
Igfe)c:ir\?:beles Revenue from Receivables
. Operations (before deducting 422 4.07 3.57
turnover ratio ..
provision)
Gross Other
Expense (-)
(g) Trade p_ayables FERY, Provisions, Average Trade
turnover ratio . payables 12.06 -1.41
Loss on disposal of d
PPE qQ_




(h) Net capital Revenue from Average Average working capital is
turnover ratio Operations working capital 8.50 -26.72 NA | negative in previous year.
In the last FY-2020-21, PAT
(i) Net profit ratio Pr(.)ﬁ; for the g ever;ue em 38.35% 20.31% 88.86 ?;:r:::: irne(lill::l?laig:;o
peno perations e oo ’ Deferral A/c which will be
passed on to Beneficiaries
Tangible Net
(j) Return on Earnings before Worth + Total 14.92%
Capital employed | interest and taxes Debt + Deferred it 16.09% -7.32
Tax Liability

g) The company has not received/advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) through Intermediaries during the financial year.

h) The Company does not have any transaction that was not recorded in the books of accounts and has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

i) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

47. Balance of debtors, creditors, security deposit and other assets/liabilities as on 31.03.2022 are subject to
confirmation/ reconciliation and consequential adjustments if any. However, reconciiiations are carried out on ongoing
basis. The management does not expect any material adjustment in the books of accounts as a resuit of the
reconciliation.

48. In the opinion of the management, the value of any of the assets other than Property, Plant and Equipment on
realization in the ordinary course of business will not be less than the value at which they are stated in the Balance

Sheet.

49. Central Transmission Utility of india Limited (Fellow Subsidiary Company) was notified as CTU w.e.f. 01.04.2021
by GOI vide Notification No. CG-DL-E-09032021-225743 and is entrusted with the job of centralized Biliing, Collection
and Disbursement (BCD) of transmission charges on behalf of all the IST licensees. Accordingly, CTU is raising bills
for transmission charges to DICs on behalf of IST licensees. The debtors and their recovery are accounted based on
the list of DICs given by CTU. POWERGRID (holding Company) was notified as CTU by GOl till 31.03.2021.




50. Disclosure of material impact of COVID-19 pandemic

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of transmission of electricity and the tariffs for the transmission
services are regulated in terms of the CERC Tariff Regulations which provide for recovery of the annual transmission
charges based on system availability.

Due to the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, various lockdowns were declared by the Central/ State Governments/
Local Authorities from time to time. However, as per the Government guidelines, transmission units and services were
exempted from the said lockdown restrictions. Due to the various steps taken by the Company, there has been no
significant impact due to the pandemic on the availability of the transmission system of the Company.

In the above backdrop, the Company has considered various internal and external information available up to the date
of approval of financial statements in assessing the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2022.

Based on the above, there has been no material impact on the operations or profitability of the company during the
financial year due to the pandemic '

‘The Company has assessed the liquidity position for the next one year and of the recoverability and carrying value
of its assets comprising of Property Plant and equipment, trade receivables and others as at Balance Sheet date and
the management is of the view that there are no material adjustments required in the financial statements. However,
the impact assessment of COVID 19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and
duration. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

51. a) Figures have been rounded off to nearest rupees in lakh up to two decimals.

b) Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged wherever considered necessary.
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